
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Gurdip Paddan

* Reporting to Cabinet

26 February 2019

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL to be held on Thursday 7 March 2019 at 
7.30pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE.

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTIONS 

To note any substitution of Committee Members in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 19 – 22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2019 
(previously circulated). 

4.  NOTIFICATION OR URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 
12 

Public Document Pack



5.  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

6.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS 

Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions.

7.  LOCAL PLAN - NEXT STEPS (Pages 5 - 18)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
submitting the Local Plan which is currently undergoing public examination by an 
independent inspector for agreement of the way forward and timetable to progress 
the Plan. 

8.  HEATHROW AIRPORT AIRSPACE AND FUTURE OPERATIONS 
CONSULTATION (Pages 19 - 26)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) on 
consultation on an expanded airport and future operations.

9.  HERTFORDSHIRE MINERALS LOCAL PLAN PROPOSED SUBMISSION 
CONSULTATION JANUARY 2019 (Pages 27 - 38)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) on 
arrangements for responding to consultation on Hertfordshire County Council’s 
Proposed Submission version of the Hertfordshire Minerals Local Plan.

10.  INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS IN VARIOUS ROADS, CUFFLEY 
(Pages 39 - 52)

Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
on proposals for and objections to the introduction of waiting restrictions in various 
roads, Cuffley.

11.  INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS, RESIDENT PERMIT PARKING 
SCHEME AND VERGE PROTECTION ORDER IN VARIOUS ROADS, ROE 
GREEN, CENTRAL AND EAST WARDS,  HATFIELD (Pages 53 - 100)

Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
on proposals for and objections to the introduction of waiting restrictions, resident 
permit parking and verge protection in various roads, Hatfield.

12.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 



13.  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Panel is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 14 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

PART II

14.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN 

Circulation: Councillors S.Boulton (Chairman)
H.Bromley (Vice-Chairman)
A.Chesterman
J.Cragg
C.Gillett
S.Glick

G.Hayes
S.Kasumu
A Rohale
P.Shah
P.Zukowskyj

Co-opted Members:-
Tenants’ Panel Representatives

R.Read

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Gurdip 
Paddan, Governance Services on 01707 357349 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Main authors: Colin Haigh and Sue Tiley
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton
All wards

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 7 MARCH 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

LOCAL PLAN – NEXT STEPS

1 Executive Summary

1.1 The Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan has been submitted and is currently undergoing 
public examination by an independent inspector.  The inspector has indicated 
that the plan does not currently meet the objectively assessed need for housing.

1.2 In December 2018 this Panel agreed a new timetable for progressing the Local 
Plan which included a call-for-sites exercise to help identify possible new sites for 
housing development.  The 66 entirely new sites and 77 re-promoted sites that 
were submitted far exceeded expectations, which means that it is not possible to 
conclude the intended consultation stage before purdah starts on 26 March 2019.  
This will result in a short delay to the agreed timetable, such that presentation of 
results and recommendations to members could take place in September 2019 
and examination hearing sessions could take place in December 2019.

1.3 The Council has also however received a letter from the Inspector asking us to 
consider a quicker timetable than the one we originally submitted to him.  This 
report therefore sets out option on how the Panel could proceed.

1.4 The report also identifies recent revisions to the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) and the consequential need to prepare a housing delivery 
action plan.

2 Recommendations

2.1 That the Panel agrees the way forward and timetable to progress the Local Plan, 
based on the options and considerations set out below.

2.2 That the Panel acknowledges the NPPF requirement to prepare a housing 
delivery action plan.  This will be presented to a future Panel for agreement.

3 Explanation

3.1 In December 2018 this Panel considered a report on the next steps for the Local 
Plan.  It agreed a timetable which comprised a new call-for-sites process in 
January 2019, publication of the promoted new sites in February 2019, analysis 
in spring 2019, presentation of results and recommendations to members in 
summer 2019, submission of new sites in summer 2019, examination hearing 
sessions in autumn 2019, modifications consultation in winter 2019, receipt of the 
Inspector’s report in early 2020 and adoption in spring 2020.  This timetable was 
communicated to the Inspector on 14 December (Appendix 1).

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



3.2 Officers issued a new call-for-sites exercise from 7 January to 4 February 2019, 
with an expectation that a handful of new sites might be identified.  In actual fact 
the number of sites submitted has far exceeded expectations.  There have been 
a total of 66 entirely new sites and 77 re-promoted sites.  It was intended that all 
sites would be quickly mapped and then issued for public consultation.  The 
unexpected number of sites however means that it is not possible to carry out 
this work and substantially conclude the consultation stage before purdah starts 
on 26 March.  The Returning Officer has therefore decided that consultation on 
sites should not happen until after the local elections which take place on 2 May.

3.3 Officers will use this time to start the individual and cumulative analysis of the 
new sites, including updating of evidence and engagement with statutory bodies 
such as Herts County Council as highway and education authority.  If public 
consultation on the new sites takes place in May/June 2019 then this will result in 
a slight delay to the agreed timetable.  The 143 sites are likely to generate a 
significant number of consultation representations, which will take time to review.  
The likely consequence is that presentation of results and recommendations to 
members could take place in September 2019 and examination hearing sessions 
could take place in December 2019.

3.4 The Inspector replied to the Council’s original timetable letter on 10 February 
(Appendix 2).  He acknowledges that a further call-for-sites is unavoidable and 
that additional consultation will be necessary as a result of this exercise.  He 
queries however whether a timetable that prolongs examination until spring 2020 
is absolutely necessary.  He asks for a more detailed timetable programmed by 
weeks and months rather than seasons and for realistic time estimates for each 
task that needs to be undertaken, based on an overlapping continuum and 
critical path analysis.  It should be noted however that this letter was written 
before the end of the call-for-sites exercise or the decision that consultation on 
new sites should not take place until after the local elections.

3.5 In light of all of the above circumstances, officers consider it appropriate for this 
Panel to debate and decide on the best way forward.

3.6 Officers have a large amount of work to carry out over the coming months, all of 
which is being progressed as quickly as possible:

 prepare call-for-sites material for public consultation
 update the Objective Assessment of Housing Need (OAHN)
 review sites through the Housing and Employment Land Availability 

Assessment (HELAA)
 update the Employment Study
 update the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA)
 update the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) and Habitats Assessment (HA)
 additional work on Landscape Sensitivity and Green Wedges as these were 

identified as important during the Stage 3 Green Belt Study examination 
hearing session

 on-going engagement and scenario testing with statutory bodies
 review consultation responses and identify key issues raised
 update the Infrastructure Delivery Plan
 update viability evidence
 finalise contamination and noise evidence for Birchall Garden Suburb
 prepare material for examination hearing sessions

Page 6



3.7 This is in addition to other functions such as the Brownfield Register, Self-Build 
Register, Annual Monitoring Report, duty to cooperate with other authorities, 
masterplanning of strategic sites, responding to consultations, commenting on 
planning proposals, etc.

3.8 It is very difficult to establish a clear overlapping continuum that anticipates and 
is able to withstand all possible interruptions, which might include changes to the 
national planning system, staff vacancies, delays in the finalisation of evidence, 
delays in responses from statutory bodies, the request for meetings with site 
promoters, the number and complexity of responses to the consultation, etc.  A 
timetable based on seasons or months allows some scope to account for these 
situations.  A timetable based on weeks, whilst understandably desirable for the 
Inspector, is unfortunately very hard to achieve in practice.

3.9 Option 1:

3.10 The Panel can agree changes to the previously agreed timetable, to 
acknowledge that public consultation on new sites will now take place after the 
local elections in May and to accept that this will push back the presentation of 
results and recommendations until September 2019 and examination hearing 
sessions until December 2019.  Officers will then write to the Inspector on this 
basis and seek to book his time for the examination hearing sessions.

3.11 A detailed timetable to achieve this option is set out in Appendix 3.  It should be 
noted that there are a number of dependencies and unknowns which could result 
in slippage.

3.12 Option 2:

3.13 This Panel considered a number of possible approaches to progress the Local 
Plan in September 2018.  The selected approach, Approach One, included a new 
call-for-sites exercise.  Approach Two was to allocate lower harm green belt sites 
that had already been promoted but rejected for the first ten years of the plan and 
to identify broad locations in the final five years of the plan.  Approach Three was 
to allocate the majority of sites that had already been promoted but rejected, with 
no reliance on broad locations.  

3.14 Officers consider that the new call-for-sites exercise presents a new opportunity 
to select known sites for the first ten years of the plan and broad locations for the 
final five years of the plan.  Sites within these broad locations could then be 
allocated through a review of the plan, something which the NPPF now requires 
every five years in any case.  This option means that it would not be necessary to 
carry out a detailed analysis of every site promoted as part of the call-for-sites 
exercise.  Emphasis could instead be placed on gaining a broader understanding 
of the likely development opportunities and constraints of broad locations.  

3.15 As presented to this Panel in September 2018, this approach meant that 
consultation would only be undertaken with statutory consultees to ensure the 
chosen strategy was deliverable.  Full public consultation would then take place 
at modifications stage after the examination hearing sessions.  Sites within the 
broad locations would then be subject to public consultation as part of a review of 
the plan.  Any other sites added into the existing submitted plan to ensure a ten 
year supply would be chosen from those sites which have previously been 

Page 7



subject to public consultation and have already been found suitable and subject 
to sustainability appraisal.  

3.16 A detailed timetable for Option 2 has not been prepared but it is anticipated that 
there would be time savings resulting from broad locations rather than individual 
sites being subject to technical assessment and sustainability appraisal and there 
being no need for consultation until the modifications stage.  This means less risk 
of slippage.  It is anticipated that this would result in a saving of 4-6 weeks.

NPPF Housing Delivery Test

3.17 MHCLG have published housing delivery test figures for 2018 which identify that 
Welwyn Hatfield built 1,493 homes in the period 2015/16 to 2017/18 against a 
target of 1,701 homes.  This equates to 88%.

3.18 Para 75 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that “Where 
the housing delivery test indicates that delivery has fallen below 95% of the 
authority’s housing requirement over the previous three years, the authority 
should prepare an action plan in line with national planning guidance, to assess 
the causes of under-delivery and identify actions to increase delivery in future 
years.”

3.19 As a consequence we now have a duty to prepare an Action Plan setting out how 
we intend to increase the delivery of housing in the borough.  

3.20 It is worth noting that if we had delivered less than 85% of our required dwellings 
then we would have to add a 20% buffer to our five year housing land supply 
(rather than 5% as we currently do).

3.21 By way of comparison, Broxbourne is at 67%, Dacorum is at 153%, East Herts is 
at 76%, Hertsmere is at 158%, North Herts is at 55%, St Albans is at 58%, 
Stevenage is at 100%, Three Rivers is at 67% and Watford is at 108% of their 
respective targets.

4 Legal Implications

4.1 The work to be carried out will be done in accordance with national legislation 
and guidance concerning the preparation of local plans.

5 Financial Implications

5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report.  Costs will be 
borne by the planning policy team budget and money ring-fenced for the cost of 
the examination.

6 Risk Management Implications

6.1 The Entech House appeal decision concludes that the emerging Local Plan is not 
at an advanced stage and that the scale of housing supply falls considerably well 
short of five years.  The Annual Monitoring Report 2017/2018 presented to this 
Panel on 7 February 2019 clarifies that the Council has between 3.1 and 3.6 
years of housing land supply.  It means that there is a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development.

Page 8



6.2 The results of the local elections in May could result in a re-consideration of the 
Local Plan timetable.

6.3 A delay to the Local Plan that results in it being adopted after 31 March 2020 
could result in the need to plan for another year of housing, to 2035.

7 Security and Terrorism Implications

7.1 There are no security or terrorism implications associated with this report.

8 Procurement Implications

8.1 There are no procurement implications associated with this report.  The planning 
policy team has sufficient budget to commission the evidence listed in this report.

9 Climate Change Implications

9.1 There are no climate change implications associated with this report.  Wider 
matters related to climate change will be considered as part of the individual and 
cumulative analysis of sites and the wording of planning policies.

10 Human Resources Implications

10.1 There are no human resource implications associated with this report.  The work 
proposed will be carried out by officers in the planning policy team.

11 Health and Wellbeing Implications

11.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications associated with this report.  Wider 
matters relating to health and wellbeing will be considered as part of the 
individual and cumulative analysis of sites and the wording of planning policies.

12 Communications and Engagement Implications

12.1 Officers will work closely with communications colleagues to ensure that 
awareness is raised of the publication of new sites for public comment in 
accordance with the adopted Statement of Community Involvement and that the 
media are briefed.  This will include writing to everyone registered on the Local 
Plan consultation database, online publication of sites and material to be placed 
in deposit points such as libraries around the borough.

13 Link to Corporate Priorities

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Business Plan 2018-2021 and 
particularly Priority 3 Our Housing to plan for current and future needs and 
Priority 4 Our Economy to support sustainable economic growth.

14 Equalities and Diversity

14.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) was not completed because this report 
does not propose changes to existing service-related policies or the development 
of new service-related policies.  All of the policies in the Submitted Local Plan 
have been subject to EqIA and any new policies would also be subject to EqIA.

Page 9



Name of author Colin Haigh
Title Head of Planning
Date February 2019

Background Papers:

Report to CPPP 13 December 2018 – Local Plan Next Steps
http://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=876&Ver=4

Report to CPPP 6 September 2018 – Green Belt Study and Next Steps
http://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=873&Ver=4

Appendices:

1. WHBC letter to Inspector dated 14 December 2018

2. Inspector letter to WHBC dated 10 February 2019

3. Proposed timetable to achieve Option 1.

Page 10

http://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=876&Ver=4
http://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=873&Ver=4


Page 11



Page 12



Examination of the Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan 2013-2032 
Inspector: Melvyn Middleton BA(Econ)  DipTP  DipMgmt  MRTPI                

Programme Officer: Mrs Louise St John Howe  
louise@poservices.co.uk  Mobile: 07789 486419 

Mr. C Haigh,       10 February, 2019 
Head of Planning,  
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, 
The Campus,  
welwyn Garden City, 
Hertfordshire AL8  6AE 

Dear Mr. Haigh,  

Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan Examination 

I refer to your letter of 14 December 2018 and the subsequent 

conversations, between yourself and Mrs St John Howe, about the 
examination’s future timetable.  Whilst I agree that in the current 

circumstances of the plan’s Examination, a further call for sites is 
unavoidable and that additional consultation will be necessary as a result 

of this exercise, I remain to be convinced that a timetable that prolongs 
this examination until the spring of 2020 is absolutely necessary.  Further, 

more detailed, information about the intended processes and their 
duration is required if this is to be objectively justified to the participants 

as well as to myself.  

However, even if the examination were to be concluded in a shorter 

period of time and bearing in mind that I only now work for PINS for 60% 
of the year, I am unlikely to be fully occupied with the duties associated 

with the Examination of this Local Plan during some of the coming months 
and will require other work to be allocated. Such work needs to be 

programmed a number of months in advance and once programmed it is 
difficult to amend because of the involvement of other Council’s and third 

parties.  

Programme Officer: Mrs Louise St John Howe, PO Services, PO Box 10965, Sudbury, Suffolk, CO10 
3BF 

Page 13

mailto:louise@poservices.co.uk


Examination of the Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan 2013-2032

Consequently, I must ask you to prepare a more detailed timetable with 
events programed by weeks and months rather than seasons. In doing 

that it would be appropriate for you to look in detail at all of the tasks 
that still need to be undertaken before the Examination can be concluded 

so that a realistic time estimate for each can be established. As I said at 
the last Hearing, the assemblage of all of the tasks along an overlapping 

continuum and using critical path analysis would establish a programme 
that led to the earliest adoption time. Additionally it would identify the 

critical tasks and events that could delay overall progress if due diligence 
is not given to them. You would then have a better control system to 

manage progress and avoid delays. 

Yours Sincerely 

Mel Middleton

Melvyn Middleton 

     INSPECTOR

Programme Officer: Mrs Louise St John Howe, PO Services, PO Box 10965, Sudbury, Suffolk, CO10 
3BF 

  2

Page 14



Key
Task

completed
Task

programme
Local Plan revised timetable Option 1 2018 2019 2020

Notes and dependencies
Tasks

Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan
Feb-
Mar

May July

Call for sites

Create website pages and submission forms,
distribute newsletter

Go live, contact landowners, promoters etc.

Acknowledge, register and map sites on GIS

2016 SNPP/SNHP: Implications on OAN

Commision Consultants (Turley)

Report report to Members in June

Implications of revised plan period on calculated
housing need report to Members in June

HELAA Addendum

Review methodology for Stage 1 sieve
Exclude sites which would not
contribute to a sustainable pattern of
development.

Carry out Stage 1 assessment
To be completed after review of
methodology

Consult 9 x technical consultees (6 weeks) on
promoted sites (that would pass Satge 1) and

changes to allocated sites density
Dependent on stakeholders ability to
respond within timescales

Update to provide clear evidence on
deliverability

Draft/review technical assessments of promoted
sites - site visits, identify constraints, suitability,

availability, achievability, deliverability issues and
estimated capacity/density

Dependent on resources to match
scale of task/number of sites to be
assessed

Feed in results of SFRA screening and
consultation with techincal consultees. Conclude

on technical assessments of sites.

Dependent on stakeholders ability to
respond within timescales

Windfall review

Prepare written report (including context,
methodology, density and deliverability

assumptions, mapping, site templates, windfall
assessment)

Dependant on other stages being
completed on time

P
age 15



Landscape sensitivity

Commission landscape sensitivity assessment of
additional sites, green wedge strategy, and green

corridor stage 2
tender returns received

 Assesment of sensitivity

Dependent on timescales identified
by successful consultant

Identifiy candidate green wedges
Stage 2 green corridor

Write up stage 1 report
Stage 2 report

SFRA Addendum

Commisson consultants Scope of work in progress

Level 1 - Screen sites
Level 2 assessment of reasonable alternatives

with flooding issues
NPPF2 - identify any impacts
Climate change implications Based on current EA position

Cumulative assessment

Reducing/managing flood risk

Draft and complete report
Based on current EA position on
climate change

Infrastructure testing
Refine scenarios for testing dependent on HELAA progress

Transport model run Subject to consultant's availability

Education

Consult other providers

Develop mitigation

Viability if required

IDP update/addendum
Finalised once sites have been
selected

Economy

Commission update to evidence base Underway

Identify criteria for protecting best employment
land

dependent on consultants availabilityReview employment sites proposed for housing

Write up results

Local Plan revised timetable Option 1 2018 2019 2020
Notes and dependencies

Tasks
Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan

Feb-
Mar

May July

P
age 16



Consultation
Prepare consultation document - maps and

templates of all promoted sites and settlement
maps

Commenced

Prepare supporting text
Prepare response forms (for email/written

submissions)
Printing of consultation document, forms and

any other supporting documents
Prepare website page, consultation portal,

adverts, press release, letters/emails and
associated admin

Place advert, press release, email/write to
consultees, distribute document to consultation

points

Consultation event goes live - 6 weeks After elections

Acknowledge responses and process
Dependent upon scale of responses
received

Identify key issues -
 Dependent upon scale of responses
received - no detailed summaries in
order to save time.

SA and HRA addendum

Appraise distribution options dependent on technical work being
completed and consultants
availability

Appraise reasonable alternatives

Appraise modifications

Site selection addendum

Review methodology

dependent on other streams of work
being completed

Identify infrastructure and other constraints to
(or opportunities to support) growth

Assess options for each settlement (by site and
strategic matter)

Incorporate SA outputs

Identify where exceptional circumstances exist

Write up addendum

Democratic process

Local Plan revised timetable Option 1 2018 2019 2020
Notes and dependencies

Tasks
Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan

Feb-
Mar

May July

P
age 17



Report to Members setting out
recommendations for selecting sites

Dpendent on technical work and
analysis of consultation responses

Examination 
Further evidence on Birchall Garden Suburb

published
Dependent on the completion of the
evidence

Inspector produces questions for Birchall Garden
Suburb

Dependent on the Inspector's
availabilityHearing Session

Submit proposed mods and technical evidence to
examination. Publish on website

Dependent on Committee cycle

Inspector produces questions

Subject to the availability of the
Inspector

Statements submitted

Hearing sessions

Modifications produced and agreed by Members

Consultation

Inspectors report

Adoption

Local Plan revised timetable Option 1 2018 2019 2020
Notes and dependencies

Tasks
Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan

Feb-
Mar

May July

P
age 18



Part I
Main author: Colin Haigh
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton
All wards

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 7 MARCH 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

HEATHROW AIRPORT AIRSPACE AND FUTURE OPERATIONS CONSULTATION

1 Executive Summary

1.1 Heathrow Airport is currently consulting on three key topics: airspace changes to 
make better use of the two existing runways, airspace changes for an expanded 
three-runway airport and future operations for an expanded airport.

1.2 The consultation can be viewed at https://afo.heathrowconsultation.com/

1.3 The deadline for responding is 4 March 2019.  Officers have asked whether this 
response can be submitted on 8 March 2019 following this Panel meeting.

2 Recommendation

2.1 That the Head of Planning and Corporate Director in consultation with the 
Executive Member for Planning be authorised to respond to this consultation as 
set out below, plus any further points agreed by the Panel.

3 Explanation

3.1 Heathrow Airport currently operates at 98% of its capacity, which means that any 
delays or disruptions can have knock-on consequences.  It is also seeking to 
build a third runway to increase its capacity.

3.2 In terms of making better use of Heathrow’s existing runways, the airport is 
consulting on the short-term introduction of Independent Parallel Approaches 
(IPA) to make the arrivals process more efficient when the airport experiences 
delays.  This would have an impact on less than 10% of arrivals.  The IPA 
proposals would introduce flights over some areas that do not routinely see 
arriving aircraft today and three design envelopes are presented for consultation 
(with potential for at least one flightpath in each).  

3.3 There are two IPA design envelopes which could potentially affect Welwyn 
Hatfield borough.  See Appendix 1 for maps and commentary.

3.4 In terms of the operation of a three-runway Heathrow, the consultation seeks 
views on matters such as runway alternation, respite flightpaths/options, runway 
directional preference and early morning arrivals.  These matters are most 
important for those living close the airport, but anything designed to alleviate 
impacts (by providing periods of noise relief/respite) at the local level will also 
potentially have spin-off benefits further afield, including Hertfordshire.  The 
consultation seeks views on a range of design envelopes, which are swathes 
within which the airport considers up to three future flightpaths will be located.

Page 19

Agenda Item 8

https://afo.heathrowconsultation.com/


3.5 A design envelope is a geographical area within which it is technically possible to 
position one or more flight paths.  It does not mean that final flight paths will be 
spread across the full width of the envelope.  The envelopes have been divided 
into sections to show the heights that aircraft could be flying at for that portion of 
the envelope.  Given that the height (altitude) of an aircraft affects the noise level 
experienced on the ground, we have assumed the lowest potential heights for 
these design envelopes.  In reality, we would expect aircraft will be flying higher 
(and should therefore be quieter when heard from the ground).  The design 
envelopes also show the number of aircraft which might fly through that envelope 
in a given day.  By providing information on the number, height and noise of 
potential flights over your area, our design envelopes aim to give you an 
understanding of the potential impact of flights and helps you to respond to this 
consultation.

3.6 There are three design envelopes which could potentially affect Welwyn Hatfield 
borough.  See Appendix 2 for maps and commentary.

3.7 Hertfordshire County Council is its own report on this consultation has stated that 
“Whilst is it likely that Hertfordshire will not need to substantively engage with 
much of the content of the consultation, the design envelope swathes are a 
matter that parts of the county will probably wish to respond to as a numbers of 
swathes traverse the county.  Consultees are being asked to identify anything 
within these swathes which they believe future flightpaths should avoid – and the 
reason(s) why.  Officers are currently liaising with borough/district council 
colleagues in relation to how Hertfordshire should best respond to the 
consultation.  At this stage it appears that individual boroughs/districts would be 
best placed to identify those parts of their areas requiring protection, perhaps 
supported by a general comment from the County Council in relation to 
protection of communities and recognition of significant assets (such as Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty and Hatfield House, for example).  In addition, the 
County Council and a number of boroughs/districts will want to make 
representations that future flightpaths should be designed so as to ensure they 
do not compromise the ability in the future for departures from London Luton 
Airport over Hertfordshire to climb higher quicker – i.e. that Heathrow flightpaths 
do not ‘hold down’ aircraft departing from London Luton.”

3.8 It is therefore recommended that the Council should respond to this consultation 
by raising concerns about the design envelopes that affect the borough, 
particularly ‘Depatures-1 for the northern runway’ which could affect homes and 
businesses in Welwyn Garden City, Hatfield and many of the borough’s southern 
villages.  

3.9 The response should also reiterate the issue identified by Hertfordshire County 
Council that design envelopes should not ‘hold down’ aircraft departing from 
London Luton Airport, as this could create greater amounts of noise and pollution 
for homes and businesses under the flightpaths of these aeroplanes.  

3.10 The NPPF states that planning policies and planning decisions should prevent 
new and existing development from contribution to, being put at unacceptable 
risk from, or being adversely affected by unacceptable levels of noise pollution.  

3.11 The NPPF also instructs local planning authorities to be aware of the significance 
of heritage assets in their area.  Great weight should be given to the asset’s 

Page 20



conservation when considering the impact of a proposed development.  The 
more important the asset the greater the weight should be.  Hatfield House, the 
Old Palace, St Etheldreda’s Church and Brocket Hall are all Grade I listed 
buildings and there are many other Grade II* and Grade II listed buildings in the 
borough.

4 Legal Implications

4.1 There are no direct legal implications associated with this report.

5 Financial Implications

5.1 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report.

6 Risk Management Implications

6.1 There are no direct risk management implications associated with this report, 
although it can be presumed that Heathrow Airport does consider these matters.

7 Security and Terrorism Implications

7.1 There are no direct security or terrorism implications associated with this report, 
although it can be presumed that Heathrow Airport does consider these matters.

8 Procurement Implications

8.1 There are no procurement implications associated with this report.

9 Climate Change Implications

9.1 There are climate change implications associated with UK aviation policy, the 
choice of whether and which airports should be expanded and the flight path 
options in the consultation document.  New flight paths over Welwyn Hatfield 
could have localised climate change impacts.

10 Human Resources Implications

10.1 There are no human resources implications associated with this report.

11 Health and Wellbeing Implications

11.1 There are health and wellbeing implications associated with the flight path 
options in the consultation document.  New flight paths over Welwyn Hatfield 
could cause noise and other forms of pollution.

12 Communications and Engagement Implications

12.1 There are communication and engagement implications associated with the flight 
path options in the consultation document.  New flight paths over Welwyn 
Hatfield would need to be explained to residents and businesses.

Page 21



13 Link to Corporate Priorities

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Business Plan 2018-2021 and 
particularly Priority 2 Our Environment to enhance our green spaces, Priority 3 
Our Housing to plan for current and future needs and Priority 4 Our Economy to 
promote investment and regeneration, revitalise our neighbourhood and town 
centres and support sustainable economic growth.

14 Equalities and Diversity

14.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) was not completed because this report 
does not propose changes to existing service-related policies or the development 
of new service-related policies.

Name of author Colin Haigh
Title Head of Planning
Date February 2019

Page 22



Appendix 1: IPA design envelopes for potential flight paths for existing runways

When the wind blows from the west, planes land over London and take off towards the 
west.  Westerly operations account for 70% of the year on average.  This design 
envelope comes close to Potters Bar and Little Heath and aeroplanes would be at 2000-
3000 feet.

When the wind blows from the west, planes land over London and take off towards the 
west.  Westerly operations account for 70% of the year on average.  This design 
envelope comes close to Potters Bar and Little Heath but aeroplanes would be at 7000+ 
feet.

Page 23



When the wind blows from the east, planes land over Windsor and take off towards 
London.  Easterly operations account for 30% of the year on average.  This design 
envelope doesn’t affect Welwyn Hatfield borough.

Page 24



Appendix 2: Design envelopes for potential flight paths at an expanded Heathrow

This design envelope comes over St Albans and Potters Bar, close to Welham Green, 
Brookmans Park and Little Heath, but aeroplanes would be at 6000-7000 feet and there 
would be zero flights above 65 decibels (equivalent to background noise levels in a 
busy office).

Page 25



This design envelope comes over Welham Green, Brookmans Park and Little Heath, 
but aeroplanes would be at 6000-7000 feet and there would be zero flights above 65 
decibels (equivalent to background noise levels in a busy office).

This design envelope comes over Welwyn Garden City, Hatfield, Newgate Street and 
Cuffley but aeroplanes would be at 6000-7000 feet and there would be zero flights 
above 65 decibels (equivalent to background noise levels in a busy office).  The design 
envelope comes over Welham Green, Brookmans Park and Little Heath but aeroplanes 
would be at 5000-6000 feet and there would be zero flights above 65 decibels 
(equivalent to background noise levels in a busy office).

Page 26



- 1 -

Part I
Main author: Sue Tiley
Executive Member: Stephen Boulton
All Wards

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL –7 MARCH 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE) 

HERTFORDSHIRE MINERALS LOCAL PLAN PROPOSED SUBMISSION 
CONSULTATION JANUARY 2019 

1. Executive Summary

1.1 Hertfordshire County Council (HCC) has published its Proposed Submission 
version of the Hertfordshire Minerals Local Plan (MLP) for consultation which 
closes on 22 March 2019. Once adopted this Plan will replace the policies 
contained within its existing Minerals Local Plan (adopted in 2007) that covered 
the period between 2002- 2016. https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-
council/consultations/environment/proposed-submission-minerals-local-plan-
consultation.aspx

1.2 The County Council have previously undertaken a number of consultations on what 
should be contained within the Mineral Local Plan and the site selection methodology. 
The last consultation was considered by Members of this Panel on 8th February 2018 
and this Council raised the following concerns: 

 The potential for cumulative impacts arising from the scale of mineral 
extraction concentrated in three allocations to the west of Hatfield, concern 
particularly relates to HGV movements; 

 The lack of assessment in the site selection process and the sustainability 
appraisal of the cumulative impacts from the combination of sites;

 Concern that the scale of mineral extraction identified in the document 
could prejudice the delivery of housing in north west Hatfield within the 
Welwyn Hatfield Local  Plan period;

 the extent of the areas identified as minerals consultation areas on the 
draft Policies Map which includes residential areas in the urban areas and 
the lack of clarity on what is a minerals safeguarding area;

 Concern that the County Council would not be able to resource advising 
on whether or not a minerals resources assessment would be required for 
the number of applications it would relate to.

1.3 This latest consultation is the formal regulation 19 consultation stage and the 
Council’s response will need to focus on any soundness or cross boundary strategic 
issues relating to the Duty to Cooperate.

1.4 The main body of the report highlights the key issues whilst the proposed Council’s 
response has been included in Appendix A to this report. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9

https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/consultations/environment/proposed-submission-minerals-local-plan-consultation.aspx
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/consultations/environment/proposed-submission-minerals-local-plan-consultation.aspx
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/consultations/environment/proposed-submission-minerals-local-plan-consultation.aspx


- 2 -

2. Recommendation(s)

2.1 That the Panel agrees the proposed response to the Hertfordshire Mineral Local 
Plan Consultation (2019) as set out in Appendix A to this report.

2.2 That the Panel agrees that the final response be confirmed by the Head of Planning 
in consultation with the Executive Member for Planning.

3. Background

3.1 Hertfordshire County Council, as the mineral planning authority, has a statutory duty 
to prepare a Minerals Local Plan, in line with NPPF. This identifies the locations 
where future minerals will be extracted (via allocations) and seeks to safeguard 
potential mineral sites from sterilisation by other uses (if necessary). It also includes 
a set of development management policies that will be used to determine planning 
applications for proposals for mineral extraction or other associated uses. When the 
MLP is adopted, it will form part of the Development Plan for the county.

3.2 It is important to have regard to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
between WHBC and HCC, which was signed in August 2017 by the Councils’ then 
respective executive members for Planning. This document identifies the strategic 
issues affecting WHBC and HCC relating to minerals and waste; and the delivery of 
housing and jobs. It agrees the approach to future plan reviews and includes a 
commitment that both authorities will continue to work together consistent with the 
requirements of the NPPF and the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, 
as amended by the Localism Act 2011.

3.3 The MOU states that the need to protect mineral resources should not prevent the 
delivery of housing and jobs required to address identified needs in the borough 
and conversely the delivery of housing and jobs should not result in the sterilisation 
of mineral resources. As part of the Duty to Cooperate text was agreed for the 
WHBC Local Plan relating to the potential prior extraction of minerals resources 
from the proposed Strategic Development Sites. 

3.4 Reference in the MOU is also made to Land on the former Hatfield Aerodrome 
which is identified as a Preferred Minerals Area in the current adopted Minerals 
Local Plan. The County Council resolved to grant planning permission in 2017 for 
mineral extraction on the southern part of this Preferred Area. This consent was 
made subject to the completion of a S106 agreement and the amendment of the 
existing S.106 agreement between HCC, WHBC, St Albans Council and the 
landowner. To date no agreement has been reached on such an amendment and 
the authorities are considering the next steps. 

3.5 A planning application has been submitted to the County Council for the extraction 
of minerals at North West Hatfield SDS5 (HAT1) (described as an extension to 
Hatfield Quarry) but has yet to be determined.

3.6 Planning permission has now been granted for the extraction of minerals on Furze 
Field within which site HS34 (GTLAA09): Coopers Green Lane falls. However the 
WHBC local Plan Inspector has indicated that site HS34 should not be taken 
forward for Gypsy and Traveller provision. 

Page 28



- 3 -

4. Explanation

4.1 The National Planning Policy Framework requires Minerals Local Authorities to plan 
for a steady and adequate supply of aggregates to support sustainable economic 
growth. It notes that this should be informed by a Local Aggregate Assessment 
(LAA) based on a rolling average of 10 years sales data and other relevant local 
information, and an assessment of all supply options (including secondary and 
recycled sources). It requires the maintenance of at least a 7 year landbank of sand 
and gravel. 

4.2 The Minerals Local Plan sets out the strategy for ensuring there is a sufficient 
supply of new minerals mainly required for construction and agriculture. Welwyn 
Hatfield is particularly affected by those policies which relate to the allocation of 
sites for the extraction of sand and gravel and safeguarding of sites. 

4.3 The MLP notes that the LAA indicates an average 10 year (2007-16) sales figure of 
1.15 million tonnes per year (mtpa) of sand and gravel within Hertfordshire but 
comments that this was during a period of recession. However, the Plan is seeking 
to meet the subnational allocated apportionment figure of 1.39 million tonnes of 
sand and gravel per year for the period 2005-20 to meet future sand and gravel 
requirements, based upon the approach set out in the former East of England Plan. 
This gives a total of 30.58 million tonnes (Mt).

4.4 To help achieve this the MLP Policy 4 is allocating three specific sites and one 
Preferred Area. All three specific site lie within or partly within Welwyn Hatfield 
whilst the Preferred Area lies within East Herts. Together these make provision for 
25.25 Mt which together with permitted reserves of 10.46 Mt more than meets the 
requirement.

Policy 4 Working of Specific Sites or Preferred Areas

4.5 In response to the last consultation the Council expressed concern about the 
cumulative impact of three sites in West Hatfield being allocated in the Plan and the 
potential impact on the quality of life of residents in this area.

4.6 Proposed Specific Site 1 Hatfield Aerodrome: This site is located on the edge of 
WHBC, largely falling within St Albans District Council and would be accessed off 
the A1057. It has recently been granted permission (05/0394-16) for the 
establishment of a new sand and gravel quarry and processing plant, subject to the 
signing of a S106 agreement. It is estimated that this site contains 8 Mt of workable 
reserves and extraction is expected to commence in years 1-5 of the plan period, at 
a rate of 0.25 Mtpa (i.e. for about 30 years). Affinity Water has lodged a late 
objection to the planning application relating to the potential for the proposed 
extraction to affect the existing Bromate plume within the groundwater and thereby 
to contaminate the water supply. The Environment Agency are currently consulting 
on the appropriate management of the plume.

4.7 Proposed Specific Site 2 Hatfield Furze Field: This site is located to the north west 
of Hatfield (off Coopers Lane), within the borough and is likely to be accessed from 
Coopers Green Lane. It has recently been granted permission (5/3720-16) as an 
extension of Hatfield Quarry.  It is estimated that this site contains 0.45 Mt of 
workable reserves. The extraction is expected to commence in years 1-5 of the plan 
period and take 1.5 years to complete, however it is intended to succeed the 
extraction at the Symondshyde farm site (expected to cease in 2020), as well as 

Page 29



- 4 -

use the conveyor belt infrastructure of the previous site to transport material to a 
processing plant at Hatfield quarry, rather than vehicles. 

4.8 Proposed Specific Site 3: Hatfield Quarry – Land adjoining Coopers Lane: This site 
is located to the North West of Hatfield and relates to the housing site allocated in 
the submitted Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan SDS5 (HAT1). The Plan estimates that 
this site contains between 3.8 - 6.6 Mt of workable reserves and extraction is 
expected to commence in years 5-10 of the plan period. The MLP anticipates that 
minerals extraction will take place, at a rate of approximately 400,000 – 600,000 
tonnes per annum and is expected to take 9 -14 years. Extraction on this site is 
intended to succeed extraction at the proposed specific site 2: Furze Field and is 
expected to utilise the existing conveyor belt infrastructure of the previous site to 
transport material to a processing plant at Hatfield quarry, rather than HGV 
vehicles. As set out in paragraph 3.5 above a planning application has been 
submitted to the County Council for the extraction of 3.5 million tonnes of sand and 
gravel.

4.9 The MLP has acknowledged that proposed Specific Site 3: Hatfield Quarry is 
formed by WHBC Local Plan allocation site SDS5 (Hat1). It emphasises that the 
phasing of extraction should ensure it does not affect housing delivery on this site. 
The housing trajectory set out in the Local Plan is expecting approximately 200 
dwellings and other uses to come forward from 2020-22 onwards. Whilst the early 
phases of housing will be constructed on land which would not be subject to mineral 
extraction there is the potential for mineral extraction to delay house building if it 
cannot come forward earlier than year 5 of the minerals plan period.

4.10 Whilst there is no objection to the principal of extraction of minerals from these sites 
on an individual basis there is concern about the cumulative impacts from the 
combination of sites and the potential to impact on the delivery of housing.

Response to Policy 4.

4.11 Appendix A sets out a draft response to Policy 4 of the Minerals Plan.

4.12 It suggests that the Minerals Plan could be argued to be overestimating the need for 
mineral extraction over the plan period. It uses the more generous annual provision 
figure of 1.39 Mt based on the previous regional apportionment figure and not going 
for a ten year annual average sales figure of 1.17 Mt as many other authorities have 
in their adopted plans, or even a three year annual average figure of 1.19 Mt. A ten 
year based figure in minerals local plans, as supported by the minerals industry and 
as set out in the NPPF, picks up both periods of economic growth and economic 
stagnation/decline.

4.13 Furthermore not all authorities work on the basis of identifying a total aggregates 
provision for the plan period plus seven years thereafter in their adopted plans, 
making the not unreasonable assumption that the plan will not reach the end of its 
plan period as it will have been subject to a full or partial review by that stage. If a 
seven year period was not added to the provision at the end of the plan period, then 
even on the provision in the HMLP (rather than a ten years annual average sales 
figure), the plan has more than enough allocations without allocating all three sites.  

4.14 As a consequence it is considered that there is no need to allocate Specific Site 3. 
However this does not mean that no extraction should take place but rather it 
should be treated as a windfall site where the principals of prior extraction would be 

Page 30



- 5 -

the dominant driver rather than the need to maximise the amount of minerals 
extracted. This is the approach set out in the Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan.

Policy 8 Mineral Safeguarding

4.15 The NPPF requires that minerals are not needlessly sterilised as they are a finite 
natural resource. Minerals Planning Authorities are required to safeguard minerals 
resources and Policy 8 sets out the County Council’s intended approach to meeting 
this requirement.

4.16 The policy requires consultation with the Minerals Planning Authority on 
applications for non-minerals development within the safeguarded areas which are 
defined on the Policies Map. This allows the Minerals Planning Authority to consider 
the impact of non- minerals development on mineral reserves. The Safeguarding 
Areas include both urban and rural areas and WHBC has previously expressed 
concern that the list of development which would need to be referred to the county 
council was too extensive.

4.17 Applicants would be required to submit a Minerals Resource Assessment to 
establish whether or not there is a viable mineral resource. Prior extraction should 
take place where practicable to do so. 

Response to Policy 8

4.18 It is suggested that the threshold for consultation with the County Council should be 
raised so that only proposals for major development are referred to the County 
Council. Appendix A sets out a suggested threshold for such development for both 
urban and rural areas and is based on an approach which has been found sound 
elsewhere.

4.19 It is also suggested that the approach to viability needs also to consider the viability 
of the development as well as the viability of prior extraction.

Policy 9 Safeguarding Bulk Transport and Bulk Handling and Processing 
Sites.

4.20 In line with the NPPF 2019 the Minerals Local Plan seeks to protect the mineral 
infrastructure for the transporting, handling and processing of minerals within the 
county. Policy 9 sets out the approach and identifies a number sites which will be 
safeguarded. The Plan and policies Map identifies a number of consultation areas 
which extend beyond the sites themselves to ensure that new development does 
not impact upon the operation of such facilities. The list of facilities include Birchall 
Lane.

4.21 This includes the facilities within sites at Burnside, which adjoins the Strategic 
Development Site Birchall Garden Suburb in the Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan, and 
Birchall Lane/Cole Green which lies within the policy area for Birchall Garden 
Suburb. Similarly to Policy 8 it requires proposals within the defined consultation 
area of these facilities to be subject to consultation with HCC, as well as including a 
list of developments that will be excluded from this. 

4.22 The WHBC response will raise a concern that Submitted Local Plan Policy SP19 
has proposed a sustainable urban extension at Birchall Garden Suburb for 1,200 
dwellings, plus development and associated uses within East Herts District Council; 
which are adjacent to or located within close proximity to the above mineral facilities 

Page 31



- 6 -

(.i.e. site SDS2). It will suggest that the MLP should acknowledge this and include 
this proposal within the list of developments that should not be required to consult 
HCC, as they will be involved in the production of a Masterplan SPD for the above 
site and will consider the above facilities. It should also be noted that a green buffer 
has been proposed around the facilities at Burnside on the Policies Map, and the 
area south of the facilities at Birchall Lane/Cole Green is being proposed as Urban 
Open Land.

5. Legal Implications

5.1 There are no direct legal implications associated with this report.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. 

7. Risk Management Implications

7.1 There is a risk that in not responding to the consultation it could have both direct 
and indirect implications for Welwyn Hatfield, as it raises a number of issues for 
west Hatfield.

7.2 The timescales for the examination of the Minerals Local Plan overlap with the 
examination of the Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan. In order that progress on the 
Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan should not be affected the Council has agreed a Service 
Level Agreement with Northamptonshire County Council (a minerals and waste 
planning authority) to assist in the preparation of representations and present 
evidence at the examination.

8 Security and Terrorism Implication(s)

8.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising directly as a result of this 
report.

9 Procurement Implication(s)

9.1 There are no procurement implications arising directly as a result of this report.

10 Climate Change Implication(s)

10.1 No climate change implications have been identified resulting from this report. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implications

11.1 There are no specific health and wellbeing implications associated with this report. 
The Minerals Local Plan itself contains a development management policy on health 
and wellbeing which will allow any health and wellbeing impacts associated with 
mineral extraction to be assessed at the planning application stage. The site 
selection methodology and the Sustainability Appraisal also took into account health 
related issues.

12 Communications and Engagement Implications

12.1 There are no communication and engagement issues associated with this report.

Page 32



- 7 -

13 Link to Corporate Priorities

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Business Plan 2018-21 and, in 
particular, Priority 3 Our Housing - to plan for current and future needs and Priority 4 
Our Economy – sustainable growth. Responding to other authorities’ consultations 
helps this Council to meet these priorities effectively.

14 Equality and Diversity

14.1 Hertfordshire County Council has carried out an Equalities Impact Assessment of 
the policies set out in the Minerals Local Plan.

Sue Tiley
Planning Policy and Implementation Manager
25th February 2019

Background Papers

Report to CPPP 8 February 2018
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=650&Ver=4

Hertfordshire County Council Minerals Local Plan Proposed Submission January 2019 and 
supporting documents
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/consultations/environment/proposed-
submission-minerals-local-plan-consultation.aspx

Appendices
Appendix A:   Draft response to Hertfordshire County Council Minerals Local Plan 
Regulation 19 consultation

Page 33

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=650&Ver=4
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/consultations/environment/proposed-submission-minerals-local-plan-consultation.aspx
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/consultations/environment/proposed-submission-minerals-local-plan-consultation.aspx


This page is intentionally left blank



Representations by Welwyn Hatfield BC to the Hertfordshire MLP                                                                  February 2019
Page 1 of 4

Appendix A

Proposed Response by Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council to the Hertfordshire 
Minerals Local Plan

Policy 4: Working of Specific Sites or Preferred Areas
1.1 The Borough Council notes that the Hertfordshire Mineral Local Plan (HMLP) places a 

heavy reliance on the three site specific allocations to the west of Hatfield to provide the 
sand and gravel supply to meet the plan provision. The only other part of the plan area 
where sand and gravel extraction is proposed is at the Briggens estate (east of 
Stanstead Abbots). This is quite a concentration of allocations in a plan, and is 
particularly significant in the case of the west of Hatfield as the allocations are adjacent, 
or in close proximity to, the town’s urban area. 

1.2 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (WHBC) acknowledges that there is a long history of 
mineral extraction in the area west of Hatfield. With resources remaining in the area it 
would be expected for this to continue, subject to there being no adverse cumulative 
impact. It is further noted that two of these allocations have now been subject to 
planning applications for minerals extraction and have been approved by the Minerals 
Planning Authority (MPA), although one is still subject to a s106 agreement.  These two 
allocations are SS1 (Hatfield Aerodrome) and SS2 (Hatfield Quarry - Furze Field). Only 
a minority of the SS1 allocation is within Welwyn Hatfield Borough.

1.3 The remaining allocation SS3 (Hatfield Quarry - Land adjoining Coopers Green Lane) is 
more problematic to the Borough Council. Whilst it is difficult to object to some form of 
extraction here because there are mineral resources present, there are direct conflicts 
between the scale and timescales of the proposed allocation for sand and gravel and its 
allocation (within the same boundaries) in the proposed submission Welwyn Hatfield 
Local Plan (WHLP) as an urban extension for Hatfield. The Hatfield urban extension is 
identified as allocation SDS5, a strategic development site, allocated under Policies 
SADM 26 and SP 22. The Hatfield urban extension (SDS5) is the largest allocation in 
the WHLP with around 1,650 dwellings along with employment and community uses.

1.4 The key conflict relates to the timescales involved. The WHLP has this allocation being 
developed for completion during the plan period (which currently ends in 2032) with first 
completions taking place within the first five years along with a much needed secondary 
school, whilst the HMLP suggests the site should come forward within years 5 to 10 of 
the plan period (therefore if adoption of this plan is in 2020, then years 2025 to 2030) 
and with extraction taking from 9 to 14 years. The appendix to the HMLP notes that the 
extraction of minerals should be complementary to the residential allocation and that by 
phasing the extraction this should not affect the timely provision of housing with the 
WHLP period. The HMLP suggests that the proposed allocation has a potential 
workable reserve of 3.8 to 6.6 million tonnes (Mt). It is very unusual, and perhaps 
unique, for there to be such a variation in the likely resource identified for a proposed 
allocation in a minerals local plan. This variation is because of both uncertainty, but also 
differing opinions, on what could be brought forward at this location in relation to working 
in tandem with the development of this area as an urban extension.

1.5 Allocation SS2 is now subject to a permission and the operators (CEMEX) have stated 
that this site should follow on once the adjacent Symondshyde Farm site completes in 
2020. Extraction is expected to take 1.5 years. There is no processing plant to be 
established here as the resource will be transported by conveyor to the Hatfield Quarry 
processing location, so it is possible that this site could be completed by 2022. As the 
same operator has the minerals interest in SS3 then extraction here could commence in 
2022 or 2023 after extraction at SS2 has completed. This would be earlier than 

Page 35



Representations by Welwyn Hatfield BC to the Hertfordshire MLP                                                                  February 2019
Page 2 of 4

anticipated in the HMLP where it is proposed for year 5 of the plan period i.e. 2025. 
However even this earlier start date would therefore likely be in years 5 to 6 of the 
WHLP plan period. This is at least a third of the way through the period of the WHLP 
and with a 9 to 14 year period for mineral extraction could see extraction taking place up 
to 2031 at the earliest. This would pose significant challenges for WHBC in delivering 
their largest housing allocation (as the WHBC has a plan period to 2032) and thus affect 
the delivery of the WHLP’s overall housing provision. In such a situation there will issues 
about what amount of extraction could take place and the timings and locations for this 
without it causing an unacceptable delay to the implementation of the urban extension.

1.6 There are therefore a number of complexities here that make the phasing of the 
development for the new urban extension and any sand and gravel extraction uncertain 
to the extent that makes the inclusion of this area as a site specific allocation in a 
development plan perhaps not the most appropriate way forward. 

1.7 The HMLP has identified a need for allocations to meet a provision figure of 30.58 Mt. 
This is based on an annual provision figure of 1.39 million tonnes per annum (Mtpa), 
derived from the previous regional apportionment figure, over a 22 year period. The 
timescale is the 15 year plan period plus a further 7 years (therefore going to 2042) to 
guarantee that there is a 7 year landbank of sand and gravel at the end of the plan 
period. Remaining permitted reserves of the operational sites and sites with planning 
permission (taking end 2017 as the date for this calculation) come to 10.46 Mt. The 
outstanding provision figure that needs to be made up through allocations in the HMLP 
is 20.13 Mt (i.e. the total provision minus the remaining permitted reserves,
30.58 – 10.46 = 20.13 Mt).

1.8 It can be argued that the HMLP is generous in utilising an annual provision figure of 
1.39 Mt based on the previous regional apportionment figure and not going for a ten 
year annual average sales figure of 1.17 Mt as many other authorities have in their 
adopted plans, or even a three year annual average figure of 1.19 Mt. A ten year based 
figure in minerals local plans, as supported by the minerals industry and as set out in the 
NPPF, picks up both periods of economic growth and economic stagnation/decline. It is 
likely that, contrary to what is assumed by the HMLP, a continuing higher production 
level will not endure for the duration of the plan and that extraction will be affected by 
economically challenging circumstances at certain points over its plan period. The 
HMLP plan area also does not appear to have the necessary circumstances applying 
that would invoke any specific local circumstances to go above a ten year annual 
average sales figure; levels of growth and infrastructure proposals are not particularly 
significant to necessitate a specific upward adjustment to a ten year based provision 
figure. 

1.9 Furthermore not all authorities work on the basis of identifying a total aggregates 
provision for the plan period plus seven years thereafter in their adopted plans, making 
the not unreasonable assumption that the plan will not reach the end of its plan period 
as it will have been subject to a full or partial review by that stage. If a seven year period 
was not added to the provision at the end of the plan period, then even on the provision 
in the HMLP (rather than a ten years annual average sales figure), the plan has more 
than enough allocations without SS3.  

1.10 The inclusion of SS1, SS2 and Preferred Area 1 (the Briggens estate) already meets 
18.65 Mt of the 20.13 Mt provision required. In other words when this potential gap is 
looked at through the prism of:
 a provision figure higher than the NPPF ten year annual average sales in the HMLP, 
 provision through allocations in the HMLP being extended seven years beyond the 

end of the 2035 plan period, and 
 that a review of the minerals local plan will occur well before 2035,
then it becomes clear that there is no over-riding need to actually allocate SS3. 

Page 36



Representations by Welwyn Hatfield BC to the Hertfordshire MLP                                                                  February 2019
Page 3 of 4

1.11 However it should be emphasised that not allocating SS3 does not mean that no 
extraction would take place at this location. What it would mean is that for this area 
Policy 8 on Mineral Safeguarding would now be the predominant policy driver. Through 
being in a Mineral Safeguarding Area the urban extension proposed for this area would 
have to comply in relation to prior extraction where this was economically feasible, and it 
is clear it would be. However, it would need to reflect the key nature of the identified 
area, being that it is a strategic development site allocated for the purpose of delivering 
the largest urban extension allocated in the WHLP. As such extraction should be 
complementary to the phasing and development of the Hatfield urban extension rather 
than extraction driving its phasing and development. The provision of aggregates from 
the site would then form a windfall, contributing towards the total provision over the plan 
period, and would still act to ensure a steady and adequate supply of aggregates to 
support planned growth. 

1.12 This would also help in managing the effects of mineral extraction on both the existing 
residents of Hatfield Garden Village and early occupiers of the new dwellings in the 
urban extension.

Proposed Change Sought
1.13 WHBC seeks the following:

That allocation SS3 is removed from Policy 4 and the explanatory text is consequently 
amended to reflect this change. The first sentence of Policy 4 should be amended to 
include “predominantly” before “met”.

Policy 8: Mineral Safeguarding
1.14 The Borough Council supports the changes to Minerals Consultation Areas by 

effectively collapsing them into the Mineral Safeguarding Areas. This will aid clarification 
of the policy and when the minerals planning authority (mpa) should be notified of 
applications within the Minerals Safeguarding Area. 

1.15 However the Borough Council considers that the type of proposed development that 
should be notified to the MPA is too extensive and should be limited to the types of 
development that could lead to significant sterilisation. On this basis it is considered the 
following criteria (which lists when there should be consultation on proposals) should be 
used instead of the excluded development list in paragraph 10.10 of the HMLP: 

Significant development within existing urban (built-up) areas:
Development involving any one or more of the following:
a) the provision of dwelling houses where - i. the number of dwelling houses to be 
provided is 10 or more, or ii. the development is to be carried out on a site having an 
area of 0.5 hectare or more and it is not known whether the development falls within 
paragraph (a)(i),
b) the provision of a building or buildings where the floor space to be created by the 
development is 1,000 square metres or more, or
c) development carried out on a site having an area of 1 hectare or more, or
d) any development subject to an Environmental Impact Assessment under the 
Environmental Impact Regulations.
Significant development elsewhere:
Development involving any one or more of the following:
a) the provision of one or more dwelling houses but not including extensions to 
existing dwelling houses or those within the recognised settlement boundaries, or
b) the provision of permanent buildings or structures but not including extensions 
under 1,000 square metres, conversions, or demolition, or
c) redevelopment of commercial or industrial sites over 1 hectare or more, or

Page 37



Representations by Welwyn Hatfield BC to the Hertfordshire MLP                                                                  February 2019
Page 4 of 4

d) any development subject to an Environmental Impact Assessment under the 
Environmental Impact Regulations.

1.16 Utilising this criteria to define proposals in a Minerals Safeguarding Area that the mpa 
should be consulted upon is in line with national guidance; it has been used in a recently 
adopted minerals and waste local plan. For proposals in urban areas it utilises the 
definition of major development as set out in the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) Order 2015. It would also have the benefit of 
picking up key potential sterilisation matters but not leading to unnecessary 
safeguarding area consultations between the local planning authorities and the mpa.

1.17 In relation to prior extraction it is considered that the HMLP does not cover appropriately 
the issue of viability in prior extraction. This is not just about whether it is viable for a 
mineral operator to undertake prior extraction but also whether the prior extraction has 
an impact on the viability and delivery of the proposed non-mineral development. The 
HMLP should be amended to reflect this. 

Proposed Changes Sought
1.18 WHBC seeks the following:

- That the excluded development list in paragraph 10.10 of the explanatory text to 
Policy 8 is replaced with the categories of development listed within paragraph 1.15 
above.

- Paragraph 10.10 is amended to read: “In order to avoid an unnecessary number of 
consultations on applications that are unlikely to be objected to on minerals grounds, 
only some types of planning application will be covered by the consultation 
procedures. The categories on which consultation will be required are as follows:”

- The first sentence of paragraph 10.11 is amended to read: “The county council 
should be consulted on all proposals for non-mineral development which fall within 
MSAs and meet these stated criteria.” 

- Add at the end of paragraph 10.15: “Hertfordshire has a requirement to provide a 
significant amount of new housing and even where prior extraction may be practical, 
it should nevertheless be considered in relation to the feasibility and viability of doing 
so both in relation to the (prior) extraction of the resource and whether the prior 
extraction itself could harm the viability of the overall proposed development.”

- Amend the last paragraph of Policy 8 to read (additional wording in brackets): “Prior 
extraction will be sought where practicable unless it is demonstrated that the mineral 
cannot practically be extracted in advance of the proposed development. The 
practicalities of extraction should give due weight to the feasibility and viability of 
prior extraction both in relation to the (prior) extraction of the resource and whether 
the prior extraction itself could harm the viability of the overall proposed 
development. Where no prior extraction is to take place then in these circumstances, 
full consideration should be given to the use of raised sand and gravel material on 
site in construction projects to reduce the need to import material as opportunistic 
use.”

Page 38



1

Part I
Main author: Matthew McCann
Executive Member: Stephen Boulton
Northaw and Cuffley Ward

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 7 MARCH 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES)

INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS IN VARIOUS ROADS, CUFFLEY

1 Executive Summary

1.1 Residents and businesses in parts of Cuffley were consulted upon on street 
parking restrictions proposals in 2018. When concluding the works programme for 
Cuffley, all requests made before October 2018 were also looked at, including a 
request for double yellow lines on sections of roads where obstructive parking were 
causing traffic flow issues. This included requests from Colesdale and Brookside 
Crescent.

1.2 This report sets out the results of the informal consultation, the statutory 
consultation and the recommended course of action. A total of 232 residents and 
businesses have been consulted. One objection has been received. See 
Appendix A.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 That the Panel consider the objection received in 4.1, and in particular the issues 
raised in Section 15 around equalities and diversity and having considered all the 
detailed issues in this report including any proposed mitigating actions, 
recommends to Cabinet to proceed with the creation of the Traffic Regulation 
Order (TRO) for all the reasons set out in this report

3 Explanation

3.1 Brookside Crescent

Several residents from Brookside Crescent had contacted the Council 
independently to complain of parking congestion and damage to the grass verge 
on the bend leading into the crescent shaped area adjacent to numbers 46 and 
48.

The initial response from Parking Services was to propose double yellow lines 
around the bend on the northeast side only to enable vehicles to have a bigger 
sweep left into the crescent area. This will also be of benefit to refuse collection 
vehicles which will reduce in driving up the edge of the opposite verge to navigate 
past parked vehicles on the bend. 

One formal objection was received in relation to the Brookside Crescent proposals. 
See Appendix A.

Page 39

Agenda Item 10



2

3.2 Colesdale

A resident from Colesdale had contacted the Council to complain of parking 
congestion when entering and exiting the garage access area opposite number 8 
Colesdale. In 2016, double yellow lines had been introduced on the side of road 
where the access road is.

The initial response from Parking Services was to propose double yellow lines 
directly opposite the garage access area to enable a better sweep for vehicles to 
enter and exit the area.

Following advertisement of the proposals, no formal objections were received. 

3.3 Station Road and Maynard Place

As part of the conclusion of the Works Programme in Cuffley, residents and 
business in Station Road and Maynard Place were consulted on any requirements 
to change the parking conditions within the road. There was no majority from the 
responses wishing to change the times or lengths of restrictions already offered in 
the parking bays within the road. There was a strong desire to see a disabled bay 
made enforceable to give better provision for disabled badge holders in the 
shopping area. As part of the proposals, a disabled bay has been proposed to be 
restricted 24/7 and provided nearer to the centre of the shopping area and crossing 
point. See Appendix C for the plans. 

It was also identified by Parking Services that the ‘permit holder’s only bay’ which 
,is located on Station Road by the junction of Lambs Close, was no longer being 
used by permit holders during the parking restriction days and times, due to 
sufficient parking provision in the permit bays in Lambs Close. As part of the 
parking restriction proposals, we proposed to change the bay from Permit Holders 
Only Monday to Friday, 11am to 1pm to match the other parking bays within the 
road to Monday to Saturday 8am – 6:30pm 30 minutes, no return within 1 hour. 
Obstructive parking is taking place on single yellow lines along both roads on 
Sundays and evenings when the restriction didn’t apply – often vehicles parking 
within 10 metres of the junction. Double yellow lines are proposed to remove the 
option for parking in those parts of the road, reducing parking congestion. 

Following advertisement of the proposals, no formal objections were received. 

3.4 Theobalds Road

This section of Theobalds Road is narrow and unable to accommodate parked 
vehicles and delivery vehicles. A loading restriction was introduced in 2000 to 
prohibit vehicles, including blue badge holders, from parking or loading/unloading 
in the narrow section of road by the junction of Station Road. However, upon 
checking the Councils records during the consultation process it uncovered that 
Hertfordshire County Council had subsequently introduced a double yellow lines 
in the same part of the road which had caused the loading/unloading restriction to 
automatically revoke. Parking Services then re-advertised the loading/unloading 
prohibition to rectify the clerical error, and to enable to restriction to be enforceable. 

Following advertisement of the proposals, no formal objections were received. 

Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)

Page 40



3

3.5 On the 9th January 2019 the public notice proposing “The Borough of Welwyn 
Hatfield (Various Roads, Cuffley) (Restriction of Waiting , Loading and 
Unloading) Order 2019 together with “The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield 
(Station Road, Cuffley) (Parking Places) Order 2019 was advertised in the 
Welwyn Hatfield Times. Notices were also erected in the lengths of roads 
affected. The closing date for formal objections was Friday 1st February 2019. 
See Appendix B

4 Objections

4.1 There is one objection pertaining to Brookside Crescent, relating to the proposal 
for double yellow lines.

Below is a summary of the grounds for objection.

a) There has never been an issue with parking within the area proposed for 
double yellow lines

b) The section of road away from the proposed yellow lines is very narrow 
and two vehicles cannot park on either (both) sides. 

c) If the proposal takes effect then parking in the other section of Brookside 
Crescent will become more difficult

4.2 The reasons for moving forward with these proposals are as follows:

4.2.1 Responses to 4.1

a) The proposals were brought forward upon several requests from 
residents who live directly by the section of highway where lines have 
been proposed. The proposals relate to a short section of yellow lines on 
the bend of the road where the turning range is more limited for larger 
vehicles. The introduction would assist in larger vehicles like refuse 
vehicles from accessing the crescent area with a bigger sweep without 
needing to mount the verge on the opposite side of the carriageway. As 
highlighted by the objector further in the objection, vehicles for sale have 
been parked in the past, in the section of highway that is proposed for 
double yellow lines.

b) There has been no other comments raised by residents in the road that 
the narrow section suffers with parking issues. On site visits by Parking 
Officers, there is often a limited amount of vehicles parked within that part 
of the road. Most drivers use a common sense approach in narrow 
sections of highway, to ensure not to park on both sides of the road and 
not cause obstruction for vehicles to be able to navigate past. 

c) There is a low likelihood of parking displacement towards the narrow 
section of highway between numbers 4 and 12, by the introduction of the 
section of line proposed which equates to 3 vehicle lengths, as there is 
spare capacity elsewhere within the road to handle the maximum 
additional 3 vehicles caused by the introduction of parking restriction. 
Parking Services monitor all restrictions for 6 months after introduction to 
see if any displacement has been caused and work can be planned to 
resolve any displacement.

Page 41



4

5 Legal Implication(s)

5.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report.

6 Financial Implication(s)

6.1 The cost of TRO works recommended in this report will be funded through existing 
Parking Services revenue and capital budgets.

6.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or parking 
displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are discovered 
during the monitoring period, Parking Services will investigate and carry out the 
appropriate remedial action.

7 Risk Management Implications

7.1 Changing the parking conditions in the above mentioned roads could generate 
negative publicity. Some parking may be displaced into nearby roads. 

7.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or parking 
displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are discovered 
during the monitoring period, Parking Services where possible will investigate and 
carryout the appropriate remedial action.

8 Security & Terrorism Implications

8.1 There are no security & terrorism implications inherent in relation to the 
proposals in this report.

9 Human Resources

9.1 There are no known Human Resources implications in relation to the proposals in 
this report.

10 Communication and Engagement

10.1 When making any changes to parking restrictions there is a statutory consultation 
process set out in the Local Authority Traffic Orders (Procedures) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 which the Council needs to adhere to. This includes 
consulting directly with all affected parties and a number of statutory consultees, 
such as the Police and Hertfordshire County Council. 

10.2 In addition, Notices are required to be erected within all roads affected and 
advertised in the local newspaper, in this case the Welwyn Hatfield Times.

10.3 This process has been carried out and there are no known implications in relation 
to the proposals in this report.

11 Health and Wellbeing

Page 42



5

11.1 There are no known Health and Wellbeing implications in relation to the proposals 
in this report

12 Procurement Implications

12.1 There are no procurement implications inherent in relation to the proposals in this 
report.

13 Climate Change Implication(s)

13.1 There are no climate change implications inherent in relation to the proposals in   
this report.

14  Link to Corporate Priorities

14.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Protect and 
Enhance the Environment, and specifically to the achievement to Deliver 
Effective Parking Services

 Protect and enhance the environment and deliver effective parking 
services;

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money

15 Equality and Diversity

15.1 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out. 

15.2 The EqIA found that there is potential for negative impacts on Age, Pregnancy 
and Disability. The double yellow lines will prevent parking at junctions which 
may force some motorists to park further away from their destination. Parking 
Services believe however that the benefits gained from junction protection far 
outweigh any dis-benefits. 

15.3 Disabled drivers with a valid blue badge are allowed to park on yellow lines with 
no loading prohibitions for up to 3 hrs. The provision of the formal disabled bay in 
Station Road, Cuffley will enhance the disabled parking provision available close 
to the local amenities. 

15.4 During the monitoring period (6.2) should any unintended impacts come to light, 
Parking Services will where possible investigate and carryout the appropriate 
remedial action.

Name of author Matthew McCann 01707 357304
Title Parking Services Officer
Date 18th February 2019

Background papers to be listed (if applicable)  

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, CUFFLEY) 
(PROHIBITION AND RESTRICTION OF WAITING, LOADING AND UNLOADING) 

ORDER 2019 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (STATION ROAD, CUFFLEY) (PARKING 
PLACES) ORDER 2019 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (pursuant to 
arrangement made with Hertfordshire County Council) proposes to make the above 
Orders under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to introduce restrictions in Various 
Roads, Cuffley as specified in the Schedule(s) to this Notice. 
 
Full details of the proposals are contained in the draft Order, the plans and the statement 
of reasons which may be inspected during normal office hours at the offices of Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough Council, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City or viewed at 
www.welhat.gov.uk from 9th January 2019 
 
General enquiries relating to the proposals should be referred to Mr. Matthew McCann, 
Parking Services Officer, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City AL8 6AE 
(01707 357000); email parking@welhat.gov.uk  
 
Objections to the proposals should be made in writing to Ka Ng, Council Offices, The 
Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE by Friday 1st February 2019, stating the 
grounds on which they are made.  
 

 
SCHEDULE 1 Loading Ban - No Loading/Unloading Monday – Saturday 8am-6:30pm 
 
Parts of Theobalds Road and Station Road 
 
SCHEDULE 2 Double yellow lines “No waiting at any time” 
 
Parts of Brookside Crescent, Colesdale, Maynard Place and Station Road 
 
SCHEDULE 3 Parking limited to 30 minutes waiting with no return within the next 1 
hour Monday – Saturday 8am-6:30pm 
 
Parts of Station Road 
 
SCHEDULE 4 Disabled Badge Holders only at any time 
 
Parts of Station Road 
 
 
Ka Ng 
Corporate Director 
Resources, Environment and Cultural Services 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
 
9th January 2019 

Appendix B

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



T
itle -  V

a
rio

u
s R

o
a

d
s, C

uffley 2018

E
W

S N

K
e

y
- E

xistin
g

 d
o

u
b

le
 yellow

 lines

©
C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p

yrig
h

t A
ll rig

h
ts re

se
rved W

elw
yn H

atfield
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
cil L

ice
n

se
 N

o
. LA

 100019547 2018

D
ra

w
n

 - 0
4

/1
0

/2018
S

ca
le - 1

:7
5

0
 on A

3

B
y - P

a
rkin

g
 S

e
rvices M

M
D

ra
w

in
g

 - 1
 of 3

- E
xistin

g
 3

0
m

in
s L

im
ite

d
 W

a
itin

g
 M

o
n

d
a

y-S
aturday 8:00am

-6:30pm
3

0
 m

in
u

te
s, n

o
 re

tu
rn

 w
ithin 1 hour

- P
ro

p
o

se
d

 N
o

 L
o

a
d

in
g

 M
o

n
-S

a
t 0

8
:0

0
a

m
-6:30pm

 in addition to
e

xistin
g

 d
o

u
b

le
 ye

llow
 lines

-  P
ro

p
o

se
d

 L
im

ite
d

 W
a

itin
g

 M
o

n
d

a
y-S

a
turday 8:00am

-6:30pm
3

0
m

in
u

te
s, n

o
 re

tu
rn

 w
ithin 1 hour

- P
ro

p
o

se
d

 d
o

u
b

le
 ye

llow
 lines

- P
ro

p
o

se
d

 D
isa

b
le

d
 B

a
d

g
e H

olders O
nly

T
h

is lin
e

 m
e

a
su

re
s 1

0
0

m
m

 o
n

 o
riginal A

3 paper

Appendix C

Page 49



Appendix C

Page 50



Key:-

Title:- Various Roads, Cuffley 2018
Drawn - 03/05/2018
Scale - 1:500 on A4

EW

S

N

By - Parking Services MM
Drawing - 3 of 3

This line measures 100mm on original A4 paper

© Crown Copyright All rights reserved Welwyn Hatfield
Borough Council License No. LA 100019547 2018

- Proposed Double yellow lines - No waiting at anytime

- Existing Double Yellow Lines

Appendix C

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part I
Main author: Vikki Hatfield
Executive Member: Stephen Boulton
Hatfield Central.

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 7 MARCH 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES)

INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS, RESIDENT PERMIT PARKING 
SCHEME AND VERGE PROTECTION ORDER IN VARIOUS ROADS, ROE GREEN, 
CENTRAL AND EAST WARDS,  HATFIELD

1 Executive Summary

1.1 In recent years a large number of complaints have been received from residents 
in the Roe Green area of Hatfield, about people parking in the residential roads 
when visiting the Galleria rather than pay for parking in the Galleria car park. The 
Council in October 2016 started the parking consultation in the Roe Green area of 
Hatfield. The scheme was split into two, with Area One including the roads to the 
west of Lemsford Road being engaged in the first round. As a result of the 
consultation, on the 3rd July 2017 a resident permit parking scheme (RPPS) 
together with additional waiting restrictions was introduced in various roads in Roe 
Green. The resident parking permit scheme operates Monday - Saturday, 8am – 
6pm. Following the successful implementation of the scheme, a number of 
complaints continued to be received from residents concerning vehicles either 
parked on the footway or grass verge. A further letter was sent to residents 
informing them that they would be consulted on a verge protection order (VPO) 
during the second round of consultation.

1.2 The Council are receiving more and more requests all over the borough, to address 
vehicles parking on the verge and pavements. Until recently, enforcement of 
parking on the pavement was within the remit of the Police as this could be classed 
as obstruction; however this is now regarded as a low priority for the Police due to 
other work pressures. Without a VPO in place, vehicles who park on the verge and 
green areas are reported through to the Council and the Street Warden team who 
will monitor and place notices on vehicles parking in such areas, requesting that 
they refrain from doing this. The introduction of a VPO will provide the Civil 
Enforcement Officers with the means to effectively and robustly enforce vehicles 
parking in these areas, by issuing a Parking Ticket.

1.3 A VPO covers the limits of the public highway, extending from the centre of the 
road to the highway boundary, which in many cases is the boundary of the 
private property, this could include verges and/or pavement. Yellow line waiting 
restrictions also share the same boundary.

1.4 In January 2018 the Council started the parking consultation in Area Two with the 
remaining roads predominantly to the east of Lemsford Road, Hatfield.

1.5 This report sets out the results of the informal consultation, the statutory 
consultation and the recommended course of action. Approximately 1800 
properties and businesses have been consulted.  This report also outlines an 

Page 53

Agenda Item 11



2

amendment the Council is proposing and the objections which were received in 
response to the advertised Orders.

1.6 Twelve objections have been received relating to the proposed RPPS. One 
objection has been received relating to the proposed VPO; please see Appendix 
A.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 That the Panel consider the objections received in 4.1 and 4.3; and in addition the 
issues raised in Section 15 around equalities and diversity. Having considered all 
the detailed issues in this report including any proposed mitigating actions; 
recommends to Cabinet to proceed with the creation of both the VPO (Appendix 
B) and the RPPS (Appendix C), for the reasons set out in this report.

3 Explanation 

3.1 This particular section of Roe Green centres around Lemsford Road which extends 
from the A1001 Hatfield Business Park to the north, and to the Town Centre at the 
south. Other than double yellow lines on junctions leading off Lemsford Road, 
there are no other waiting restrictions in the surrounding area.

3.2 Work is due to commence on the redevelopment of Hatfield Town Centre, including 
proposals to construct a new multi-storey car in The Common car park, a road 
within the consultation area. It was recognised beforehand that a degree of parking 
displacement was likely both during and after the construction of the new car park. 
Residents were therefore offered the opportunity as to what, if any parking 
restrictions they would like would like to address this.

3.3 Residents in this area complained largely of non-residential parking, which they 
have mainly alluded to local workers from the nearby business park to the north 
and the town centre at the south. The parking situation along the length of 
Lemsford Road was considered to be extremely dangerous with poor visibility and 
few passing points.

3.4 Further complaints concerned parking on the footway and lack of available parking 
due to the current road layout. A number of investigations are now currently 
underway in the area to see if the Council could increase parking provision.

3.5 Residents were given the choice of do nothing (leaving it as it is), opting for 
additional yellow line restrictions or a RPPS. 

3.6 The majority response received from residents indicated they would like to see the 
introduction of a RPPS, favouring operating times of Monday to Saturday, 8am-
6pm. Additional double yellow line restrictions are proposed in places along the 
length of Lemsford Road and other locations to improve road safety.

Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)

3.7 On the 16th January 2019 the public notice proposing “The Borough of Welwyn 
Hatfield (Various Roads, Roe Green, Hatfield) (Restriction of Waiting and 
Permit Parking Zones) Order 2018” (See Appendix B) and “The Borough of 
Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Roe Green, Hatfield) (Prohibition of 
Stopping and Waiting on Verge or Footway) Order 2018” (See Appendix C) 

Page 54



3

was advertised in the Welwyn Hatfield Times. Notices were also erected in the 
lengths of roads affected and letters delivered to residents and businesses.

4 Objections

4.1 One objection has been received from a resident in Area One relating to the 
verge protection order which can be summarised below:

- The verge on Pond Croft is constantly used for parking and is a necessity for 
residents. The massive verge should be widened so that cars can park on 
both sides.

4.2 Response to 4.1

- The land in question is not suitable for land improvements due to the 
presence of a mature tree with a large canopy. There are also underground 
utilities bisecting the plot preventing construction.

4.3 Eleven objections have been received in relation to the proposed waiting 
restrictions which can be summarised below:

a) Double yellow all of Lemsford Road and have the housing association 
put up ‘Resident Parking Only – Clamping in Progress’ signs.

b) I believe the scheme as proposed will have a detrimental effect on 
patients registered at this surgery (Wrafton House).

c) Whilst it is unsatisfactory parking on the grass verge and walkway, 
where else can the overflow of vehicles park at St Lukes Court?

d) I believe that my visitors and I should be able to park for free outside my 
own house. A restriction between 12pm-2pm Monday to Friday would 
suffice. The majority of residents didn’t respond which tells us they did 
not see or read the letters you sent out; this is another case of 
councillors behaving underhandedly, beguiling residents and pretending 
that we wanted these changes.

e) As I will be paying for a permit, how can you guarantee me a parking 
place? Are you going to put bollards up to stop people parking on the 
green? Stockbreach Road residents often use the (Stockbreach) Close 
to park on. What will you do to solve this?

f) Banning commercial vehicles from parking overnight in residential 
streets would reduce the number of vehicles in the road. The road 
verges etc need to be altered to include off-road parking. Limit the 
number of vehicles allowed at a property to the number of spaces 
available for that property.

g) If your scheme causes non-residents to park in our car park, then we 
will be forced to implement parking access controls in our private car 
park (Wordsworth Court). If that’s the case I expect the Council to help 
with these additional costs.

h) If a scheme is to be introduced, then Monday to Friday 11am to 12noon 
would be more sensible. Also what about visitors, deliveries etc ?

Page 55



4

i) I wish to object to the subject draft order on the grounds that it will 
operate on Saturdays when there is likely to be less demand for 
commuter related on-street parking, but greater demand by family and 
social visiting.

j) I do not think it is fair to pay for a permit for the first car.

k) I strongly object to residents having to pay for visitor permits. You 
should be insisting that companies on the Business Park provide 
sufficient car-parking for their employees. Build a multi-storey car park 
there instead.

l) We have never had an issue with non-residential cars on our road who 
were not invited guests of our neighbours or ourselves and thus feel this 
scheme is not appropriate for the area.

4.4 Responses to 4.3

a) The removal of all parking would lead to increased vehicle speeds. 
Clamping signs are illegal. Resident Parking Only signs are not 
enforceable and routinely ignored in other locations.

b) Complaints from residents concern the parking of vehicles on the 
footway outside the surgery leading to obstruction to pedestrians and a 
dangerous loss of visibility to vehicles emerging from minor roads. 
Several patient parking bays are available within the curtilage of 
Wrafton House. Blue badge holders can park without limitation for free 
in RPPS and on yellow lines for 3 hours (where no obstruction is 
caused). Additionally, Parking Services have committed to review the 
restrictions with residents in nearby roads, with a view to providing 
limited waiting bays similar to those provided in The Common outside 
another Surgery. (nb this objection was received from a local 
resident/patient unconnected with Wrafton House)

c) St Lukes Court is a private development. The verge protection order in 
this location is restricted to the public highway. It is the responsibility of 
the landowner to manage parking on their own property.

d) Fees and charges are set by Cabinet. These charges cover the cost of 
administration and if there is any surplus contributes to the cost of 
enforcement. This information is included in the correspondence sent to 
residents, they are urged in the survey letters to engage in the 
consultation, thus ensuring their views are taken into consideration as 
part of the decision making process.

e) The Council is in no position to guarantee anyone a parking place. 
However, with the removal of the non-residential vehicles residents 
should be in a better position to find a parking space within a 
reasonable distance to their home. Parking on the Green will be 
addressed with the introduction of the verge protection order. One of 
the benefits of a resident scheme is that roads within the same scheme 
are available for use by all residents. This is particularly important in 
some high density roads where parking is already at a premium.

Page 56



5

f) Vehicles with a gross plated weight in excess of 3.5 tonnes are subject 
to Goods Vehicle Operator Licensing. The licences are issued by the 
Traffic Commissioners with stipulations on where vehicles should be 
parked overnight. These matters are the responsibility of the Police. 
This particular location (Stockbreach Close) is currently being 
considered for parking improvements.

g) Many similar locations within the survey area are already subject to 
private parking enforcement. This is for private landlords, housing 
associations etc to consider and manage.

h) Residents may purchase visitor vouchers. A 50% discount is available 
to residents in receipt of a DHS Pension. Standard exemptions exist for 
loading and unloading. Experience elsewhere has shown that a very 
short restriction as suggested may lead to tidal parking and further 
inconvenience.

i) This particular location (Jasmine Gardens) had an almost equal amount 
of properties voting for both Mon-Fri & Mon-Sat. As the surrounding 
roads had chosen Monday to Saturday, this option was chosen to 
maintain parity. Bespoke options for separate roads often lead to 
criticism from the Parking Adjudicator. Motorists unfamiliar with a 
location are entitled to expect a uniform approach specific to that area.

j) See response at (d) concerning fees and charges.

k) Although parking in the Business Park is close to capacity, many 
choose to park in neighbouring residential streets to avoid congestion 
on leaving the business park at the end of the working day.

l) A large majority of residents in Stockbreach Close who engaged in the 
consultation have requested a permit parking scheme.

5 Legal Implication(s)

5.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report.

6 Financial Implication(s)

6.1 The cost of TRO and Parking Improvement works recommended in this report will 
be funded through existing Parking Services revenue and capital budgets.

6.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or parking 
displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are discovered 
during the monitoring period, Parking Services will investigate and carry out the 
appropriate remedial action.

7 Risk Management Implications

7.1 Changing the parking conditions in the above mentioned roads could generate 
negative publicity. Some parking may be displaced into nearby roads. 

Page 57



6

7.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or parking 
displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are discovered 
during the monitoring period, Parking Services where possible will investigate and 
carryout the appropriate remedial action.

8 Security & Terrorism Implications

8.1 There are no known security & terrorism implications in relation to the proposals 
in this report.

9 Human Resources

9.1 There are no known Human Resources implications in relation to the proposals in 
this report.

10 Communication and Engagement

10.1 When making any changes to parking restrictions there is a statutory consultation 
process set out in the Local Authority Traffic Orders (Procedures) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 which the Council needs to adhere to. This includes 
consulting directly with all affected parties and a number of statutory consultees, 
such as the Police and Hertfordshire County Council. 

10.2 In addition, Notices are required to be erected within all roads affected and 
advertised in the local newspaper, in this case the Welwyn Hatfield Times.

10.3 This process has been carried out and there are no known implications in relation 
to the proposals in this report.

11 Health and Wellbeing

11.1 There are no known Health and Wellbeing implications in relation to the proposals 
in this report

12 Procurement Implications

12.1 There are no known procurement implications in relation to the proposals in this 
report.

13 Climate Change Implication(s)

13.1 There are no known climate change implications in relation to the proposals in this 
report.

14 Link to Corporate Priorities

14.1 This report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Protect and Enhance the 
Environment, and specifically to the achievement to Deliver Effective Parking 
Services

 Protect and enhance the environment and deliver effective parking 
services;

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money

Page 58



7

15 Equality and Diversity

15.1 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out. 

15.2 The EqIA found that there is potential for a positive impact on Disability. There is 
an inbuilt exemption to the Verge Protection Order which allows for the unloading 
and loading of goods and passengers. Blue badge holders also benefit from an 
exemption allowing them to park without a permit in resident permit parking 
schemes.

Name of author Jack Carson 01707 357529
Title Parking Services Technician
Date 18th February 2019

Background papers to be listed (if applicable)  

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Page 61



Appendix A

Page 62



Appendix A

Page 63



Appendix A

Page 64



Appendix A

Page 65



Appendix A

Page 66



 
Sent: 04 February 2019 16:28 
 
Subject: Objections to the proposed parking permits. 
 
 
WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening attachments or 
clicking links.  
.  
 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 
  
I am writing to strongly object to the proposed parking changes for the STOCKBREACH ROAD area.  The proposed 
parking permits will not change anything as they do not address the cause of the problem.  The problem is that it is a 
very narrow road which has a lot of terraced houses with no off road parking.  In several areas where there are two 
mid terraced houses opposite each other, there is space in the road for one car per two houses.  The occupants of 
most houses these days have one or more vehicles, hence the reason for the problem.  Parking permits will not fix 
this as the road is full every day and night.  There is also a lot of businesses being run from that street which means 
that there are a lot of commercial vehicles parked in the road.   
  
I live in STOCKBREACH CLOSE and problems in my road are caused by vehicles which belong to residents of 
STOCKBREACH ROAD and are over spilling into my road.  There are also vehicles, including commercial vehicles, 
being parked in STOCKBREACH CLOSE which belong to people who live in LEMSFORD ROAD. 
  
Only the council can solve the problem and it will not be done by inflicting another tax on residents.  The way to 
solve this is: 
  

1.  Do not place council tenants in properties which do not meet their parking needs.  Limit the number of 
vehicles allowed at a property to the number of spaces available for that property.  People look at the 
number of bedrooms but don’t take in to account parking which is a national problem.  

Or 
  

2. This road was not built in a time when people had lots of cars.  The road, verges, pavements and gardens 
need to be altered to include off road parking.  There is the space there, it just needs to be redesigned. 

  
Also 
  

3. Banning commercial vehicles from parking overnight in residential streets would reduce the number of 
vehicles in the road.  There is a free car park in LEMSFORD ROAD which they could park in.  

  
  
This tax will be of no benefit to me as it will not change anything.  The only way it will improve things in my road is if 
you are only allowed to park in the road you live in.  If this is not the case then the problem will carry on as it is, 
except residents will have to pay for the pleasure of not being able to park.  I also object to the fact that this is an 
annual charge.  That is not necessary.  Just allocate one or two passes per household and send them out with the 
Council Tax bill.  We already pay far too much for not very much and this proposal just adds insult to injury. 
  
Regards 
  
  
 

Appendix A

Page 67



Appendix A

Page 68



Appendix A

Page 69



Appendix A

Page 70



Appendix A

Page 71



Appendix A

Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Appendix B

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984 
 

 
THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD 

(VARIOUS ROADS, ROE GREEN, HATFIELD) (PROHIBITION OF STOPPING 
AND WAITING ON VERGE OR FOOTWAY) ORDER 2018 

 
 
The Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to 
arrangements made with Hertfordshire County Council (“the County Council”) under Section 
19 Local Government Act 2000 and The Local Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge 
of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012 in exercise of the powers of the said County 
Council under Sections 1(1), 2(1) to (3), 3(2), 4(1) and 4(2) of the Road Traffic Regulation 
Act 1984 (herein referred to as “the Act of 1984”) and Part IV of Schedule 9 of the Act of 
1984 and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief Officer of Police 
in accordance with Paragraph 20 of Schedule 9 to the Act of 1984, hereby makes the 
following Order:- 
 
 

1. (a) This Order shall come into operation on xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx2018 and 
may be cited as "The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Roe 
Green, Hatfield) (Prohibition of Stopping and Waiting on Verge or Footway) 
Order 2018 hereinafter referred to as ‘this Order’ 
 
(b) The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Roe Green, Hatfield) 
(Prohibition of Stopping and Waiting on Verge or Footway) Order Plans 2018 – 
RG/VPO/001/2018, RG/VPO/002/2018 and RG/VPO/003/2018 (hereinafter 
referred to as the “accompanying plans”) are incorporated into this Order. 

 
2. (1) In this Order, except where the context otherwise requires, the following 

expressions have the meanings hereby respectively assigned to them:- 
 

“the Act of 1984” means the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; 
 
“the Council” means Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council; 
 
“accompanying plans” means the plans RG/VPO/001/2018, RG/VPO/002/2018 and 
RG/VPO/003/2018 as incorporated into The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various 
Roads, Roe Green, Hatfield) (Prohibition of Stopping and Waiting on Verge or 
Footway) Order Plans 2018. 
 
“carer” means a family member or paid helper who regularly looks after a child or a 
sick, elderly or disabled person 
 
“carriageway” has the same meaning as in Section 329 of the Highways Act 1980, 
but does not include lay-bys; 
 
“driver”, in relation to a vehicle waiting in a parking place, means the person driving 
the vehicle at the time it was left in the parking place; 

 
"footway" has the same meaning as in Section 329 of the Highways Act 1980; 

 
“legally qualified medical practitioner” has the same meaning as ‘fully registered 
medical practitioner’ in the Medical Act 1983; 
 

Page 75



Appendix B
2 

 

“medical practitioner” has the same meaning as ‘legally qualified medical 
practitioner’; 
 
 
“Midwife, District Nurse or Health Visitor” means a person registered as such with the 
Nursing and Midwifery Council. 
 
“parking attendant” has the same meaning as in Section 63A of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 and by virtue of Section 76 Traffic Management Act 2004, a 
parking attendant appointed under Section 63A of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984 is a civil enforcement officer in relation to parking contraventions; 
 
“provision of a universal postal service”, “universal service provider” and “postal 
packet” shall bear the same meanings as in section 65 of the Postal services Act 
2011; 
 
“road” means the full width – including any footway or verge – of any length of 
highway or of any other road to which the public has access, and includes bridges 
over which a road passes; 
 
“traffic sign” means a sign of any size, colour and type prescribed or authorised 
under, or having effect as though prescribed or authorised under section 64 of the 
Act of 1984; 
 
“vehicle crossover” means a metalled surface constructed specifically as a means of 
access across a verge from the carriageway of a road, to a private driveway or 
private parking place; 
 
"verge" means any land forming part of the road which is neither carriageway nor 
footway. 

 
 
            (2)    In this Order, except where the context otherwise requires:- 
 

(a) Any reference to a numbered article or a numbered Schedule is a reference to 
the Article or Schedule bearing that number in this Order; 

(b) Any reference to a numbered or lettered paragraph or sub-paragraph is a 
reference to the paragraph or sub-paragraph bearing that number or letter in the 
Article or Schedule or (in the case of a sub-paragraph) paragraph in which the 
reference occurs; and 

(c) Any reference to a Table, or to a numbered Table, is a reference to the Table, or 
to the Table bearing that number, in the Article or Schedule in which that 
reference occurs. 

 
(3)  Any reference in this Order to any enactment shall be construed as a reference 
to that enactment as amended by any subsequent enactment; 
 
(4)  The restrictions imposed by this Order shall be in addition to and not in 
derogation of any restriction or requirement imposed by any regulations made under 
or having effect as if made under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, or by or 
under any other enactment; 
 
(5)  The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply for the interpretation of this Order as it 
applies for the interpretation of an Act of Parliament. 

 
 

 

Page 76



Appendix B
3 

 

3. Save as provided in Articles 4, 5 and 6 of this Order no person shall, except upon the 
direction of, or with the permission of a Police Constable in uniform, or with the 
permission of a parking attendant, cause or permit any vehicle to stop or wait at any 
time with two or more wheels on any part of the verge, vehicle crossover or footway, 
where stopping and waiting is prohibited as shown in the “accompanying plans” and 
indicated in the key to those plans and as listed in the Schedule to this Order.  
 

 
4. (1) Nothing in Article 3 of this Order applies to the lengths of road restricted by that 

Article (which said lengths of road are referred to in this Article as "the restricted 
area") in relation to - 

 
(a) A vehicle being used for Fire and Rescue, Ambulance or Police purposes; if the 

observance of that provision would be likely to hinder the use of that vehicle for 
the purpose for which is being used on that occasion 

(b) a vehicle which is prevented from proceeding by circumstances beyond the 
driver’s control or which has stopped in order to avoid injury or damage to 
persons or property or when required to do so by law; 

(c) a vehicle which is stationary in order that it may be used for one or more of the 
purposes specified in sub-Article (2) of this Article and which cannot reasonably 
be used for such a purpose without stopping in the restricted area; 

(d) a marked vehicle which, whilst used by a universal service provider in the course 
of the provision of a universal postal service, is stationary only for so long as may 
be reasonably necessary for postal packets to be delivered or collected. 
 

 (2) The "purposes" referred to in sub-Article (1) (c) of this Article are - 
 

a) any operation involving building, demolition or excavation; 
 

b) the removal of any obstruction to traffic; 
 

c) the maintenance, upgrading, improvement to, or reconstruction of a road; 
 

d)  construction, improving, maintaining, or cleaning of any street furniture; or 
 

e) the laying, erection, alteration, repair or cleaning of any sewer or of any main 
pipe or apparatus for the supply of gas, water or electricity, or of any 
telecommunications apparatus kept or installed for the purposes of a 
telecommunications code system or of any other telecommunications apparatus 
lawfully kept installed in any position. 

 
5.  Nothing in Article 3 of this Order applies to lengths of road restricted by that Article 

(which said lengths of road are referred to in this Article as “the restricted area”) so 
as to render it unlawful  to cause or permit a vehicle to stop or wait on any vehicle 
crossover for so long as may be necessary -  
 
(a) To enable goods to be loaded on or unloaded from the vehicle from or to 

premises adjacent to the restricted area; or 
 

(b) To enable a passenger to board or alight and to load and unload any luggage. 
 
(c) To enable a medical practitioner, or to enable a Midwife, a District Nurse or a 

health Visitor registered with the Nursing and Midwifery Council or a carer to 
make a house call on a patient; 

 
(d) To enable the vehicle to be used in connection with the removal of furniture from 

one office or dwelling house to another, or the removal of furniture from such 
premises to a depository or to such premises from a depository; 

Page 77



Appendix B
4 

 

 
(e) a marked vehicle which, whilst used by a universal service provider in the course 

of the provision of a universal postal service, is stationary only for so long as may 
be reasonably necessary for postal packets to be delivered or collected. 

 
 

6. (1) Nothing in Article 3 of this Order shall render it unlawful to cause or permit a 
      disabled person’s vehicle which displays in the relevant position a disabled 

person’s badge to stop or wait any time on a vehicle crossover where stopping and 
waiting is prohibited as shown in the “accompanying plans” to this Order and 
identified in the key to that plans as no stopping or waiting, for a period not 
exceeding 3 hours (not being a period separated by an interval of less than 1 hour 
from a previous period of stopping or waiting by the same vehicle on the same 
vehicle crossover 

 
             (2) In this Article –  

 
  “disabled person’s vehicle” has the same meaning as in Section 142 (1) of the  
  Act of 1984; 
 
  “disabled person’s badge” has the same meaning as given in Regulation 3(1) of The  
  Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Exemptions for Disabled Persons) (England)   
  Regulations 2000 
 
  “parking disc” has the same meaning as given in Regulation 8 (5) of The Local 
  Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Exemptions for Disabled Persons) (England)  
  Regulations 2000; and  
 
  “relevant position” has the same meaning as given in Regulation 4 of The Local  
  Authorities Traffic Orders (Exemptions for Disabled persons) (England) Regulations  
  2000. 

 
7. (1) Where a person contravenes any of the restrictions set out in the provisions of 

this Order, or a vehicle is left on any verge, vehicle crossover, or footway, otherwise 
than in accordance with the provisions of this Order, the Owner of the Vehicle in 
question shall incur a penalty charge. 
 
(2) That charge shall be payable to Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council in accordance 
with the instructions contained on the Penalty Charge Notice. 

 
8. The provisions of the following Order is hereby revoked but only in so far as they are 

affected by the restrictions imposed by this Order and the relevant Schedule – 
 

 
The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Control of Parking) (Consolidation) Order 2017 
 

 
SCHEDULE 

No Stopping and Waiting at any time on Verge or Footway Order Plans 2018 
 

Plan No RG/VPO/001/2018 
Plan No RG/VPO/002/2018 
Plan No RG/VPO/003/2018 

 
 
 
 

Page 78



Appendix B
5 

 

 
GIVEN under the Common Seal of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council this 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXX2018 
 
THE COMMON SEAL of the WELWYN ) 
HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL was ) 
hereunto affixed in the presence of:- ) 
 
 
 
Mayor 
 
 
Authorised Officer 

Page 79



Appendix BKey

Title

EW

S

N
This line measures 100mm on original A3 paper

-  Proposed No Stopping or Waiting at any time on verge or footway © Crown Copyright All rights reserved Welwyn Hatfield
Borough Council License No. LA 100019547 2018

Drawn - 25/01/2018
Scale - 1:2000 on  A3

By - JC of Parking Services
Drawing - RG/VPO/001/2018

The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Roe Green, Hatfield)
(Prohibition of Stopping and Waiting on Verge or Footway) Order Plans 2018

Page 80



Appendix B
Page 81



Appendix BKey

Title

This line measures 100mm on original A3 paper

© Crown Copyright All rights reserved Welwyn Hatfield
Borough Council License No. LA 100019547 2018

Drawn - 25/01/2018
Scale - 1:2000 on A3

By - JC of Parking Services
Drawing - RG/VPO/003/2018

- Proposed No stopping and Waiting at any time on verge or footway

The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Roe Green, Hatfield
(Prohibition of Stopping and Waiting on Verge or Footway) Order Plans 2018

Page 82



Appendix C
 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984 

 
THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, ROE GREEN, HATFIELD) 

(RESTRICTION OF WAITING AND PERMIT PARKING ZONES) ORDER 2018 
 
The Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to 
arrangements made with Hertfordshire County Council (“the County Council”) under Section 
19 of the Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Authorities (Arrangements for the 
Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012 in exercise of the powers conferred on 
the said County Council by Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 45, 46, 47, 49 and 53 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 (“the Act of 1984”) and Part IV of Schedule 9 of the Act of 1984 and of 
all other enabling powers and after consultation with the Chief Officer of Police in accordance 
with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act of 1984 hereby makes the following Order:- 
 
Commencement 
 
1) (a) This Order shall come into operation on XXXXXXXXXXX and may be cited as The 

Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Roe Green, Hatfield) (Restriction of 
Waiting and Permit Parking Zones) Order 2018 hereinafter referred to as “this 
Order”. 

 
(b)  The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Roe Green, Hatfield) (Restriction 
of Waiting and Permit Parking Zones) Order Plans 2018 – RG/001/2018, 
RG/002/2018, RG/003/2018 and RG/004/2018 (hereinafter referred to as the 
“accompanying plans”) are incorporated into this order. 
 

Interpretation 
 
2) In this Order :- 
 

“accompanying plans” means the plans RG/001/2018, RG/002/2018, RG/003/2018 
and RG/004/2018 as incorporated into The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various 
Roads, Roe Green, Hatfield) (Restriction of Waiting and Permit Parking Zones) Order 
Plans 2018. 
 
“Business Permit” means a permit issued in accordance with Article 11 of this order;  

 
"Disabled Person" means a disabled person of a description prescribed by regulation 4 
of the Disabled Persons (Badges for Motor Vehicles) (England) Regulations 2000 SI 
682; 

 
“Disabled Person’s Badge” has the same meaning as in the Disabled Persons 
(Badges for Motor Vehicles) (England) Regulations 2000 SI 682; 

 
"Disabled Person's Vehicle" means a vehicle lawfully displaying a disabled person's 
badge and which is a vehicle which, immediately before or after any period of waiting 
allowed by virtue of a provision of a kind required by regulation 8 of the Local 
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Exemptions for Disabled Persons) (England) Regulations 
2000 SI 683, has been or is to be driven by a disabled person or, as the case may be, 
has been or is to be used for carrying disabled persons as passengers; 

 
“Civil Enforcement Officer” is a Civil Enforcement Officer as defined by the Traffic    

Page 83



Appendix C

2 
 

 Management Act 2004 and appointed by Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council; 
 
“Doctors/Health Visitor Permit” means a permit issued in accordance with the Article 
12 of this Order;  
 
 "Driver" means the person driving the vehicle at the time it was left in the parking  
 place; 
  
“Eligible Address” means any postal address which is listed in Schedule 1 to this  
 Order and therefore indicates that the resident or entitled business user may apply    
 for a Parking Permit and/or Parking Vouchers; 

 
“Entitled Business User” means a person who occupies premises the postal address of 
which is an eligible address as listed in Schedule 1 and which has no off-street parking 
space provided or authorised by any planning consent related to the premises and who 
is liable for payment of business rates on that premises; 
 
“Household” means a dwelling with a separate entry on the Council’s Council Tax 
register; 
  
“Motor Vehicle” has the same meaning as in Section 136(1) of the Act of 1984; 
 
"Motor Cycle" has the same meaning as in Section 185(1) of the Road Traffic Act 
1988; 
  
"Owner” has the meaning assigned to it by s 82. (2) and (3) of the Road Traffic 
Act 1991; 
 
“Paperless parking permit” means a parking permit issued electronically by the 
service provider; 
 
“Paperless parking voucher” means a parking voucher issued electronically by the 
service provider; 
  
“Parking Permit” means a Resident Permit, Business Permit, Contractor Permit, 
Doctor/Health Visitor Permit or Special Permit issued by the Council under the 
provisions of this order; or its paperless equivalent; 
 
“Parking Place” means any area on a highway designated as a parking place by this 
order; 
 
"Parking Voucher" means a Visitor Voucher or issued by the Council under the 
provisions of this order and bearing printed instructions for its validation on the front 
face; or its paperless equivalent; 
 
“Parking Zone” or “PZ” refers to all the Parking Places in a specified area indicated by 
name or alphanumeric code which are to be used only by vehicles displaying a valid 
Parking Permit or Parking Voucher for that specified area during the permitted hours 
of operation and which are shown in the labels and key to the accompanying plans 
specified in Schedule 2 to this Order; 
 
“Pensioner” means any resident who is in receipt of a state pension; 
 

Page 84



Appendix C

3 
 

"Permit Holder" means a person to whom a Parking Permit and/or a Parking Voucher 
has been issued; 
 
“Permitted Hours” means a period specified for each parking place during which the 
waiting by vehicles of a specific class is permitted as shown in the labels and key to the 
accompanying plans as specified in Schedule 2 to this Order; 
 
"Relevant Position" means on the dashboard or fascia of the vehicle or where the 
vehicle is not fitted with a dashboard or fascia in a conspicuous position on the 
nearside of the vehicle, or if the vehicle is one being used by a disabled person has 
the same meaning as given in Regulation 4 of The Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders 
(Exemptions for Disabled Persons) (England) Regulations 2000; 
 
"Resident" means a person whose usual place of abode is an eligible address listed in 
Schedule1 to this Order; 
 
“Resident Permit” means a permit issued to a resident in accordance with Article 9 of 
this order; 
 
“Service Provider” is a service administering parking transactions, records of permits 
and vouchers and records of paperless permits and paperless parking vouchers; 
 
“Special Permit” means a permit issued in accordance with Article 13 of this order;  

 
“universal service provider”, “provision of a universal postal Service” and “postal packet” 
shall bear the same meanings as in the Postal Services Act 2011; 
 
 “Vehicle” means motor vehicle or motor cycle;  
 
 
 
 

Restriction of waiting  
 
3) a) Save as provided in Articles 38, 39, and 40 (a) of this Order, no person shall, except 

upon the direction of or with the permission of a Police Constable in uniform or with 
permission of a Civil Enforcement Officer as defined by the Traffic Management Act 
2004 and appointed by Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, cause or permit any vehicle 
to wait at any time on any part of a road where waiting is prohibited as shown in the 
labels and Key to the accompanying plans as specified in Schedule 2 to this Order. 

 
b) Save as provided in Articles 38, 39, and 40 (b) of this Order, no person shall, except 
upon the direction of or with the permission of a Police Constable in uniform or with 
permission of a Civil Enforcement Officer as defined by the Traffic Management Act 
2004 and appointed by Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, cause or permit any vehicle 
to wait on any restricted road during the restricted hours as shown in the labels and 
Key to the accompanying plans as specified in Schedule 2 to this Order. 

 
 
 

 
Designation of Permit and Voucher Parking Places 
 

Page 85



Appendix C

4 
 

4) Subject to the provisions of this Order, Permit Parking Places may be used for the 
leaving during the permitted hours of vehicles of the following class, that is to say, 
passenger vehicles (the overall height of which does not exceed 2.3 metres and 
the overall length of which does not exceed 5.25 metres), goods carrying vehicles 
(the overall height of which does not exceed 2.3 metres and the overall length of 
which does not exceed 5.25 metres), motorcycles and disabled persons vehicles 
(on which must be displayed the relevant parking disc) that display a valid Permit 
or Voucher in the relevant position). 

 
5) Each area on a highway comprising the length of carriageway of a street as shown in 

the labels and Key to the accompanying plans as specified in Schedule 2 to this Order 
which unless otherwise so specified, is bounded on one side of that length by the edge 
of the carriageway and having a width throughout of at least 1.8 metres, as long as no 
obstruction of access is caused to any properties along the carriageway, is hereby 
designated as a parking place.  

 
 

6) Save as provided in Articles 38, 39, and 40 (c) of this Order no motor vehicle may be 
parked in a parking place as shown in the labels and Key to the accompanying plans as 
specified in Schedule 2 to this Order during the permitted hours without a valid Parking 
Permit, or valid Parking Voucher being displayed in the relevant position. 

 
7) The absence of a Parking Permit or Parking Voucher, or a record of a paperless 

Parking Permit or paperless Parking Voucher, for a motor vehicle left in a parking 
place shall be evidence of the fact that a Parking Permit or Parking Voucher has not 
been purchased by the driver of the vehicle. 
 

8) Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers to be displayed on vehicles left in a parking place 
at all times;   

 
a) when a vehicle is left in a parking place during the permitted hours, the driver thereof 

shall cause to be displayed in the relevant position a valid paper Parking Permit issued 
in respect of that vehicle or a valid Parking Voucher so that all the particulars referred 
to in Article 19 are readily visible from the front of the vehicle; or 
 

b) shall have purchased either a paperless Parking Permit or paperless Parking Voucher. 
 
Eligibility for a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers 
 
9) Any resident who is the owner of a motor vehicle or has access to a company vehicle 

or hired vehicle may apply to the Council for the issue of a Resident Permit for each 
such vehicle in their ownership or control, subject to the maximum Parking Permit 
allocation per household set out in Schedule 3 to this Order. 

 
10) Any resident may apply to the Council for the issue of Visitor Vouchers, up to the 

maximum annual allocation per household of the number of days specified in Schedule 
3 to this Order. 

 
11) Any entitled business user may apply to the Council for the issue of one Business 

Permit in respect of no more than two vehicles required for the operation of the 
business. 

 
12) Any agency, professional practice or organisation which manages local doctors, 

midwives, district nurses, health visitors and various other essential domiciliary 

Page 86



Appendix C

5 
 

medical or caring personnel may apply for the issue of a Doctor/Health Visitor Permit 
for the use of these personnel when visiting households in the roads specified in 
Schedule 1 to this Order.  Where possible, such permits will be issued to a particular 
vehicle.  The decision to issue a Doctor/Health Visitor Permit and whether it will be 
issued to a vehicle, to an individual or to an agency, professional practice or 
organisation will be at the discretion of the Council.  

 
13) Any person (or any person acting on behalf of a resident) may at any time apply to the 

Council for the issue of a Special Permit in respect of a vehicle identifying the user of 
the vehicle.  The decision to issue a special parking permit is at the discretion of the 
Council.  Without prejudice to the generality of the Council discretion the following 
circumstances may be relevant to an application: 

 
a) the applicant’s exceptional medical needs; 
b) the applicant’s exceptional social needs; 
c) any exceptional difficulty experienced by a carer for any resident. 
 
 

 
Application for a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers 
 
14) Application for a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers shall be made on a form either 

on paper, or electronically provided by the Council.  The form must be completed and 
returned accompanied by a payment for the charge set by the Council, specified in 
Schedule 4 of this Order and by such documentary evidence of entitlement in respect 
of an application for a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers made to them as the 
Council may reasonably request to verify any particulars or information given to them. 

 
15) On receipt of a properly completed application and fee where appropriate the Council 

shall issue to the appropriate applicant a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers provided 
that the applicant qualifies for the Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers 

 
16) a) Where a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers are issued to any person upon receipt 

of a cheque or credit/debit card details and the payment is subsequently 
dishonoured, the Parking Permit or Parking Voucher shall immediately cease to be 
valid. 

 
b) The Council will serve notice by recorded delivery on the person to whom the 

Parking Permit or Parking Voucher was issued at the address shown by the 
applicant on the application form or at any other address believed to be the 
applicant’s place of abode, requiring that person to surrender the Parking Permit or 
Parking Voucher, to the Council within 48 hours of the receipt of the notice. 

 
Charges for Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 
 
17) The charges for a Parking Permit and Parking Vouchers shall be as specified in 

Schedule 4 to this Order. 
 
18) The charges for a Parking Permit and Parking Vouchers may be amended by the 

Local Authority giving notice in accordance with section 46A of the Act of 1984.  
 
Form of Parking Permit and Parking Voucher 
 
19) a)  A Parking Permit shall include the following particulars: 

Page 87



Appendix C

6 
 

i) a serial number by which the Permit Holder may be identified; 
ii) the registration number(s) of the vehicle(s) for which the parking permit is issued; 
iii) the expiry date; 
iv) an alphanumeric code to identify the Parking Zone; 
v) a paper permit shall include an authentication that the Parking Permit has been 

issued by the Council 
 

b) A Parking Voucher shall include the following particulars: 
i) A serial number by which the Permit Holder may be identified; 
ii) the day, date, month and year of commencement; 
iii) an alphanumeric code to identify the Parking Zone; 
iv) a paper parking voucher, shall include an authentication that the Parking Voucher 

has been issued by the Council 
 
Surrender, Withdrawal and Validity of a Parking Permit or Parking Voucher 
 
20) A Permit Holder may surrender a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers to the Council at 

any time. 
 
21) The Council may by notice served by recorded delivery on the Permit Holder at the 

address shown by that person on the application form or at any other address believed 
to be that person's place of abode, withdraw a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers, if it 
appears to the Council that:- 

a) the Permit Holder has ceased to be eligible to hold a Parking Permit or Parking 
Vouchers under the provisions of Articles 9 to 13 of this order; 

b) the vehicle or motorcycle in respect of which a Parking Permit was issued has been 
adapted or used in such a manner that it is no longer a vehicle for which a Parking 
Permit can be issued; 

c) the details on a paper Parking Permit or paper Parking Vouchers as described in 
Article 19 of this Order have been deliberately altered. 

 
22) A paper Parking Permit will be valid only if displayed on the vehicle or motorcycle to 

which the Parking Permit relates in the relevant position. 
 
23) A paper Parking Voucher will be valid only if displayed on a vehicle or a motor cycle in 

the relevant position and correctly marked in accordance with the instructions for 
validation on the front face. 

 
24) A Parking Permit shall cease to be valid at midnight on the specified expiry date or on 

the date the Council withdraws the Parking Permit by notice, whichever is the earlier. 
 
25) The Council will not make any refund for the withdrawal of a Parking Permit or Parking 

Vouchers. 
 
26) The Council will refund part of the cost of a Parking Permit which has been 

surrendered, if not less than one month remains before the expiry date, the amount of 
refund to be as specified in Schedule 5 to this Order and subject to an administration 
charge as specified in Schedule 4 to this Order.  

 
27)  The Council will refund the cost of whole books of both parking vouchers which are 

surrendered before their expiry date subject to an administration charge as specified in 
Schedule 4 to this Order. 

 
 

Page 88



Appendix C

7 
 

Application for and the issue of a Duplicate Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers 
 
28) The Council will issue a duplicate or replacement Parking Permit or Parking vouchers 

in the following circumstances: 

a) If a paper Parking Permit is mutilated or accidentally defaced or the figures or 
particulars on it have become illegible or the colour of the Parking Permit has faded 
or altered, the Permit Holder shall surrender it to the Council.  If the Parking Permit is 
accompanied by an application for a replacement Parking Permit, a duplicate Parking 
Permit shall be issued and the original Parking Permit shall become invalid. 

b) If a paper Parking Permit is lost or destroyed, the Permit Holder may apply to the 
Council for the issue of a duplicate.  If the Council is satisfied as to the loss or 
destruction of the Parking Permit, a duplicate will be issued. 

c) If a Permit Holder acquires a new vehicle or motorcycle, the Permit Holder shall 
surrender the original paper Parking Permit to the Council and make an application 
for a new Parking Permit and the original Parking Permit shall become invalid. 

d) If paper Parking Vouchers are lost or destroyed, the Permit Holder may apply to the 
Council for the issue of duplicates.  If the Council is satisfied as to the loss or 
destruction of the Parking Vouchers, duplicates will be issued, on receipt of a new 
application and the appropriate fee specified in by the Council in Schedule 4. This 
article applies to whole books of Parking Vouchers only.  

e) The Council will make an administration charge for the issue of a duplicate Parking 
Permit or duplicate Parking Vouchers as set out in Schedule 4 to this order. 

 
Restriction on the removal of a Residents Parking Permit 
 
29) Where a paper Parking Permit or paper Parking Voucher, has been displayed on or 

attached to a motor vehicle in accordance with the provisions of Article 6 of this Order, 
no person other than the driver of the motor vehicle or a Civil Enforcement Officer shall 
remove the Parking Permit or Parking Voucher from the motor vehicle unless 
authorised to do so by the driver of the motor vehicle. 

 
Power to Suspend use of Parking Places 
 
30) Any person authorised by the Council may suspend the use of a parking place 

whenever he considers such suspension reasonably necessary;  
a) for the purpose of facilitating the movement of traffic or promoting its safety; or 
b) for the purpose of any building operation, demolition or excavation in or adjacent to 

the parking place or the maintenance, improvement or reconstruction of the parking 
place or the laying, erection, alteration, removal or repair in or adjacent to the parking 
place of any sewer or of any main, pipe or apparatus for the supply of gas, water or 
electricity or of any telecommunication apparatus or traffic sign; or 

c) for the convenience of occupiers of premises adjacent to the parking place on any 
occasion for the removal of furniture from one office or dwelling house to another 
place; or 

d) on any occasion on which it is likely by reason of some special attraction that any 
street will be thronged or obstructed; or 

e) for the convenience of occupiers of premises adjacent to the parking place at times 
of weddings or funerals or on other special occasions; or 

f) for the purpose of facilitating the cleansing of the parking place. 
 
 

Manner of standing in a parking place 
 
31)   Every vehicle left in a parking place in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this 

Page 89



Appendix C

8 
 

        Order shall so stand: 
      

        a)   In case of a parking place in relation to which special provisions as to the manner 
of standing of a vehicle in that parking place are listed in Schedule 2 of this Order, 
as to be in accordance with those provisions; 

 
        b)   In the case of any other parking place:- 
 
               i)   If the parking place is not in a one-way street, that the left or near-side of the 
                     vehicle is parallel to the left-hand edge of the carriageway; 
 
               ii)  That the distance between the edge of the carriageway and the nearest wheel 
                     of the vehicle is not more than 50 centimetres; 
 
        c)   In the case of a vehicle left in a parking place as listed in Schedule 2 of this Order 

that every part of the vehicle is within the limits of a parking place. 
 
 
Restriction on the use of a parking place 
 
32) During the permitted hours no person shall use any parking place or any vehicle while 

it is in a parking place in connection with the sale or offering or exposing for sale of any 
goods to any person in or near the parking place or in connection with the selling or 
offering for sale of his skill in handicraft or his services in any other capacity.  Provided 
that nothing in this Article shall prevent the sale of goods from a vehicle if the vehicle is 
a passenger vehicle, a goods carrying vehicle, a motor cycle or an invalid carriage and 
the goods are immediately delivered at or taken into premises adjacent to the vehicle 
from which the sale is effected. 

             
Alteration of position of a vehicle in a parking place 
 
33)    Where any vehicle is standing in a parking bay in contravention of the provisions of 

Article 31, a Police Constable in uniform or a Civil Enforcement Officer may cause to 
be altered the position of the vehicle in order that its position shall comply with those 
provisions. 

 
Movement of a vehicle in a parking place in an emergency 
 
34)   A Police Constable in uniform or a Civil Enforcement Officer may cause to be moved, in   
        case of an emergency, to any place he thinks fit any vehicle left in a parking place. 
 
Restrictions on the removal of Penalty Charge Notices  
 
35)   a)   Where a Penalty Charge Notice has been attached to a vehicle no person other   
                than the driver of the vehicle, a Civil Enforcement Officer or a Police Constable in  
                uniform shall remove the permit or ticket from the vehicle unless authorised to do  
                so by the driver of the vehicle. 
 
        b)   Provided that nothing herein shall apply to a Civil Enforcement Officer or a Police  
               Constable in uniform or a person removing the vehicle in pursuance of an  
               arrangement made by a Police Constable or a Civil Enforcement Officer by or 
               under regulations in pursuance of powers contained in Sections 99, 100, 101 and  
               102 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. 
 

Page 90



Appendix C

9 
 

Installation of and placing of traffic signs, etc 
 
36)   The Council shall:- 
 
       a)   Place and maintain traffic signs indicating the limits of each parking place; and  

place and maintain in or in the vicinity of each parking place as listed in Schedule 2 
of this Order, traffic signs indicating that such parking places may be used during 
the permitted hours for the leaving of the vehicles specified in Article 4; and 

 
       b)   Carry out such other work as is reasonably required for the purposes of the  
              satisfactory operation of a parking place. 
 
Penalty Charges 
 
37)   a)   Where a person contravenes the prohibitions and requirements set out in the  
               provisions of this Order, the owner of the vehicle in question shall incur a penalty 
               charge 
 
        b)   The penalty charge shall be payable to the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council in  
               accordance with the instructions contained on the penalty charge notice. 
 
Exemptions to the provisions of this Order 
 
38)   It shall not contravene Articles 3 (a) (b) and Article 6 of this Order to cause or permit any 
vehicle to wait in the parts of the road referred to therein for so long as may be reasonably 
necessary to enable:- 

a) goods to be loaded on or unloaded from the vehicle 
b) a person to board or alight from the vehicle; 
c) the vehicle, if it cannot conveniently be used for such purpose in any other  

            road, to be used in connection with any of the following operations, namely:- 
                 i)     building, industrial or demolition operations;  
                 ii)    the removal of any obstructions to traffic; 
                 iii)   the maintenance, improvement or reconstruction of the said roads;  
                 iv)   the laying, erection, alteration, repair or cleaning of any sewer or of  
                        any main pipe or apparatus for the supply of gas, water or electricity,  
                        or of any telecommunications apparatus kept or installed for the  

             purposes of a telecommunications code system or of any other  
                        telecommunications apparatus lawfully kept installed in any position.  

d) the vehicle if it cannot conveniently be used for such purpose in any other 
          road to be used in the service of a local authority or water authority in  
          pursuance of statutory powers or duties.  
e) the vehicle to be used for fire brigade, ambulance or police purposes;  
f) the vehicle to be used by a universal service provider in the course of the 

            provision of a universal postal service for the purpose of delivering or 
            collecting postal packets.  

g) a motor vehicle whilst being used by a Civil Enforcement Officer in the course 
of the enforcement of parking restrictions, is stationary only for so long as may 
be reasonably necessary for them to issue (or attempt to issue) a Penalty 
Charge Notice to a vehicle they believe to be parked in contravention of those 
restrictions or adjacent restrictions. 

 
 
39) It shall not contravene Articles 3 (a) (b) and 6 of this Order to cause or permit a 

vehicle to wait in the part of the road referred to therein if the vehicle is prevented 

Page 91



Appendix C

10 
 

from proceeding by circumstances beyond the driver’s control or if the driver of the 
vehicle has stopped in order to avoid injury or damage to persons or property or is 
required to do so by law. 

 
40)  a) Nothing in Article 3a) of this Order shall render it unlawful to cause or permit a disabled 
            person’s  vehicle which displays in the relevant position a disabled person’s badge and a  
            parking disc, to park or wait at any time in the lengths of road where waiting is prohibited as   

shown in the labels and Key to the accompanying plans as specified in Schedule 2 to this 
Order for a period not exceeding 3 hours (not being a period separated by an interval of less 
than 1 hour from a  previous period of waiting by the same vehicle in the same length of 
road). 

 
       b)  Nothing in Article 3b) of this Order shall render it unlawful to cause or permit a disabled 
            person’s  vehicle which displays in the relevant position a disabled person’s badge and a  

parking disc, to park or wait at any time on any restricted road during the restricted hours as 
shown in the labels and Key to the accompanying plans as specified in Schedule 2 to this 
Order. 

             
 
       c)  Nothing in Article 6 of this Order shall render it unlawful to cause or permit a disabled 
            person’s vehicle which displays in the relevant position a disabled person’s badge and a  

parking disc, to park or wait during permitted hours in a parking place as shown in the 
“accompanying plans” as specified in Schedule 2 to this Order and indicated in the labels 
and key to those plans as parking places.  

 
41)      The prohibitions and restrictions imposed by this Order shall be in addition to and not     
            in derogation of any restriction or requirement imposed by any regulations made or 
            having effect as if made under the Act of 1984 or by or under any other enactment.  
 
42)      The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply for the interpretation of this Order as it applies 
           for the interpretation of an act of parliament. 
 
43)     The provisions of the following Order(s) are hereby revoked but only in so far as they are 
      affected by the restrictions imposed by this Order –  
 
 

 The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Control of Parking) (Consolidation) Order 2017    
 
    
 

Schedule 1: Parking Zone  
 

Road Zone Code Eligible addresses 

Ely Close B 13 Numbers 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 
17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 26, 28, 30, 32, 34, 36, 38, 
40, 42, 44, 46, 48, 50, 52, 54, 56, 58, 60, 62, 64, 66, 68, 
70, 72A, 72B, 74 and 76. 

Jasmine Gardens B 13 Numbers 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 
17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 
32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46, 
47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 
62, 63, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70, 71, 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 
77, 78, 79, 80 and 81. 

Malvern Close B 13 Numbers 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 14. 

Page 92



Appendix C

11 
 

Middlefield B 13 Numbers 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 
16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 
31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, 
46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 54, 56, 58 and 60.  

Oak Tree Close B 13 Numbers 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 
17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 28, 30, 32, 34, 36, 
38, 40, 42, 44, 46, 48, 50, 52, 54, 56, 58, 60, 62, 64, 66, 
68, 70, 72, 74, 76, 78, 80, 82, 84, 86, 88, 90 and 92. 

The Paddock B 13 Numbers 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 16, 18, 
20, 22, 24, 26, 28, 30, 32, 34, 36, 38, 40, 42, 44, 46, 48, 
50, 52, 54, 56, 58 and 60. 

Worcester Road B 13 Numbers 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 1, 12, 14, 15, 16, 
17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 28, 30, 32, 34, 36, 
38, 40, 42, 44 and 46. 

Road Zone Code Eligible addresses 

Stockbreach Close B 14 Numbers 1, 1A, 2, 2A, 2B, 3, 4, 5A, 5B, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 
11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 
27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41, 
42, 43, 44, 45, 46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 
55a, 55B, 55C, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 
66, 67, 68, 69, 70, 71, 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 77, 78, 79, 80, 
81, 82, 84, 86, 88, 90, 92, 94, 96, 98, 100, 102, 104 and 
106. 

Stockbreach Road B 14 Numbers 1, 2, 2a, 2B, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 
14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 
29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 
44, 45, 46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 52A, 53, 54, 55, 56, 
57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70, 71, 
72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 77, 78, 79, 80, 81, 82, 83, 84, 85, 86, 
87, 88, 89, 90, 91, 92, 93, 94, 95, 96, 97, 98, 99, 100, 
101, 102, 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108 and 109 

Town Fields B 14 Numbers 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 14, 15, 16, 
17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, and 26. 

Wellfield Close B 14 Numbers 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 
17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31 
and 33. 

Wenham Place B 14 Numbers 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 13, 15, 17, 19, 21, 
23, 25, 27, 29, 31, 33, 35, 37, 39, 41, 43, 45, 47, 49, 51, 
53 and 55. 

 
 
 

Schedule 2: 
 The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Roe Green, Hatfield) (Restriction of 

Waiting and Permit Parking Zones) Order Plans 2018 

Plan number  RG/001/2018 

Plan number  RG/002/2018 

Plan number  RG/003/2018 

Plan number  RG/004/2018 

   

   

   

 

Page 93



Appendix C

12 
 

 
 

Schedule 3: 
 Allocation of Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 

Permit Type Limit 

Resident Permit  no limit 

Resident Permit for motorcycle no limit 

Business Permit 1 permit with a maximum of  2 vehicle registration 
numbers 

Visitor Voucher Books of 20 Daily Vouchers only 
Maximum purchase 240 days per year. 

Doctors/ Health Visitor  Permit allocated at Council's discretion 

Special Permit allocated at Council's discretion 

 
 
 

Schedule 4:  
Charges for Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers  

Application type Charges 

Resident Permit for disabled driver First permit Free  

Resident Permit for motorcycle £10 per annum 

Resident Permit for first car £25 per annum 

Resident Permit for second car £40 per annum 

Resident Permit for third or subsequent cars £60 per annum 

Business Permit £225 per annum 

Visitor Voucher 
 

50p per day or 25p per day to residents 
receiving state pension sold in whole books 
of Daily Vouchers only. 

Doctors/ Health Visitor Permit £20 per annum 

Special Permit charged at council's discretion 

Administration type Charges 

Refund Parking Permit and vouchers £5 

Duplicate/replacement Parking Permit £5 

Duplicate/replacement Parking Voucher £5 whole books only 

 
 
 

Schedule 5: Refunds 

Permit Type Refund 

Resident Permit for motorcycle pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Resident Permit for first car pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Residents Permit for second car pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Resident Permit for third or 
subsequent cars pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Page 94



Appendix C

13 
 

Business Permit pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Visitor Voucher Cost of whole books only 

Doctors/ Health Visitor  Permit pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Special Permit pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

 
GIVEN under the Common Seal of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council this 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 
 
THE COMMON SEAL of the WELWYN) 
HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL was ) 
hereunto affixed in the presence of:-     ) 
 
 
 
Mayor 
 
 
 
Authorised Officer 

Page 95



Appendix C

Page 96



Appendix C

Page 97



Appendix C

Page 98



Appendix C

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 LOCAL PLAN - NEXT STEPS
	7a - Appendix 1 14 12 18 letter to Inspector
	7b - Appendix 2 19-02-10 Letter from Inspector
	7c - Appendix 3 Local Plan timetable

	8 HEATHROW AIRPORT AIRSPACE AND FUTURE OPERATIONS CONSULTATION
	9 HERTFORDSHIRE MINERALS LOCAL PLAN PROPOSED SUBMISSION CONSULTATION JANUARY 2019
	9a - Appx A WH.Representations on the HMLP.Draft.Feb19 (002)

	10 INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS IN VARIOUS ROADS, CUFFLEY
	10a - Appendix A - Objection
	10b - Appendix B - Notice of Intent
	10c - Appendix C - Cuffley Plans
	Station Road Area
	Colesdale
	Brookside Crescent


	11 INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS, RESIDENT PERMIT PARKING SCHEME AND VERGE PROTECTION ORDER IN VARIOUS ROADS, ROE GREEN, CENTRAL AND EAST WARDS,  HATFIELD
	11a - Roe Green - Redacted Objections - Appendix A
	Formal objection - Lock - 6.2.19 - Redacted
	Formal objection - McGurk - Redacted
	Formal objection - Warner - Redacted
	Formal objection - Thorpe - Redacted
	Formal objection - Evans - Redacted
	Formal objection - Radford - Redacted
	Formal objection - Kitchener - Redacted
	Formal objection - Thorpe2 - Redacted
	Formal objection - Telford - Redacted
	Formal objection - Goldwater - Redacted
	Formal objection - Hedges - Redacted

	11b - Lemsford Rd VPO - Appendix B
	RG-VPO-001-Amended
	RG-VPO-002
	RG-VPO-003-amended

	11c - Lemsford Rd RPPS - Appendix C




